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TAN SRI (DR.) LIM GOH TONG
4 390 BL AR R A P L

(28 February 1918 — 23 October 2007)
(ER—TI—NE_AH/N\H » ZRZFZLETHAH=H)

Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong, was a unique, inspiring person who arrived
Malaysia in 1937 as a penniless young man without any tertiary education
and went on to create Asia’s leading conglomerate, the Genting Group.

His life story and values are inspirations to many; he was someone who
dared to dream, Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim had the courage and conviction to turn
dreams into reality. A man with true passion for his work, he would take no
vacation at all when he was engaged in a project. Evermore an extremely
humble gentleman, he often addressed himself as a simple traditional
Chinese businessman.

Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim married Puan Sri Lee Kim Hua in 1944. They were
blessed with six children (three sons and three daughters) and nineteen
grandchildren.

A lot has been written on this great man Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong, as
aspirant to his legacy, his impact has impelled us at VXL Capital Limited
through his youngest son, our Chairman, Datuk Lim Chee Wah. It is
through this similar spirit and vision of Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong, VXL
Capital Limited laid its foundation in its investment strategy for the new

China.

Our Chairman, Datuk Lim Chee Wah firmly believes that the spirit and
vision of Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong will be the pillar of our company’s
business model and would ask key management of the Company to follow his
footstep, not only in its development and expansion of our businesses in
China and Asia, but also in corporate governance and professionalism, in
order to continue the great legacy of Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong.

Our company wishes to pay our deepest regrets and condolences to our
Chairman and his family. The spirit of late Tan Sri (Dr.) Lim Goh Tong

will live on in our company.
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Chairman’s Statement

B &

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to announce the audited consolidated financial results of the

Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2008, turnover from the continuing
operations increased by 67.7% to HK$20.1 million. Both 112 Apartments
and Changshou Properties have contributed a total fair value gain of

HK$143.3 million.

During the year, in line with the strategy of capitalizing on the extensive
business opportunities arising from the opening of the PRC market, the
Group has established a team of management staff in the PRC to look after
all existing and potential China projects, including Changshou Properties
and “U” Inn hotels chain. Such expansion of workforce and frequent
corporate activities during the year has brought to an increase in legal and
professional fees and operating expenses. Nevertheless, the Group generated

an operating profit of HK$88.7 million.

As a result of the acquisition of Changshou Properties and the budget
hotels, the total borrowings of the Group has increased by HK$730.0
million and the finance costs have increased to HK$58.4 million. This has
reduced the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders down to HK$7.6

million.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In June 2008, the Group has entered into a Sale & Purchase Agreement
with an affiliate of The Blackstone Group L.P. (“Blackstone”) to dispose of
its 90% interests in a subsidiary which beneficially owns Changshou
Properties, at a net consideration of approximately HK$700.6 million. The
disposal will generate a sizeable profit and considerable cash to the Group.
It is expected that the transaction will be completed in August 2008.
Together with proceeds received from the completion of disposal of 112
Apartments in June 2008, the Group will reduce its total borrowings and

finance costs significantly.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year

ended 31 March 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

2007-08 was a fruitful year for the Group as it has achieved a number of

key operation milestones and accomplishments as listed below.

Budget Hotels

The successful acquisition of budget hotels from China Post Group during
the year has enabled the Group to build up a portfolio of 28 hotel
properties in the PRC. Geographically, the Group has now succeeded in
strategically laying “U” Inn footprints on various vibrant cities throughout
the PRC in Jilin, Liaoning, Shandong, Gansu, Hubei, Zhejiang, Sichuan,
Shaanxi, Guangdong provinces, Chongqing municipality, and Xinjiang

Uygur and Tibet autonomous regions.

Upon the completion of acquisitions, renovation and re-branding to
upgrade the acquired hotels to “U” Inn Express or “U” Inn Hotel are
immediately under way to capture the aspiring demand for quality and
“value for money” hotels in the PRC. The Group’s strategy is to develop
budget hotel chain in provincial capitals and other fast-growing cities in the

PRC targeting business travelers and tourists.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ET e (D

In addition, the acquired hotel properties provide capital appreciation
potentials in line with the robust growth in the PRC economy and real
estate market. The first two batches of 16 acquired hotel properties recorded
a 39.7% increase in capital value from the consideration of RMB296.8

million to a market value of RMB414.6 million as at 1 February 2008.

The acquisitions are a great opportunity to the Group to build up a scalable
network of hotel properties in various cities and provinces in the PRC. The
Group will continue to expand a quality portfolio of hotels that is capable

of meeting development plans in the future.

CHANGSHOU PROPERTIES: Retail spaces in Shanghai

On 4 June 2008, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
with an affiliate of Blackstone to sell its 90% equity interests in a wholly-
owned subsidiary company — Moral High. Moral High is the holding
company of Peak Moral High which owns Changshou Properties. The net
consideration for the 90% interests in Moral High was based on 90% of the
valuation of Changshou Properties at RMB1,130 million less the expected
bank borrowings of the disposed subsidiaries of RMB435 million, which
amounted to RMB625.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$700.6
million). Up to 31 March 2008, the properties have already realized a
considerable capital appreciation of approximately RMB269.6 million
(approximately HK$298.9 million) on fair value gain since our acquisition
of the property in 2007. The disposal will be completed in August 2008.
Upon completion, it is envisaged that considerable profit to the Group will

be realized, which will be reflected in the next financial year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

Kai Tak Cruise Terminal Project

In March 2008, the Group has entered into a joint venture with Star
Cruises Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Nan Fung Development
Limited and Shun Tak Holdings Limited, to bid at a public tender for Kai
Tak Cruise Terminal Development project (“Tender”). The Tender was
called by the HKSAR Government on 9 November 2007 to develop cruise
terminal facilities and buildings at the former Kai Tak Runway, Kowloon for

a lease term of 50 years.

By participating in the Tender, the Group shows its supports to the
community development by the concept of Cruise Economy. This initiative
is in line with our business strategy to focus on property investment and

hospitality.

On 9 July 2008, the HKSAR Government announced that there was no
successful bidder for the Tender and will be re-tendered by the end of 2008.
For the second round tender, the HKSAR Government intends to fund the
site formation works and facilities required for the provision of government
services. It is planning to award the tender by the third quarter of 2009
with the first berth of the new cruise terminal to begin operations in the

second quarter of 2013.

The Group is still interested in the cruise terminal development project and

will continue to monitor closely the progress of the retender.

112 APARTMENTS: Serviced apartment tower in Hong
Kong

During the year, 112 Apartments, situated in North Point, Hong Kong,
continued to report a satisfactory occupancy rate and contributed a stable
stream of recurring rental income. At the end of the financial year, 112
Apartments recorded an occupancy rate of 88.5%. On 7 December 2007,
the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party
investor for the disposal of 112 Apartments at a consideration of HK$161.0
million. The disposal envisaged a gain in capital appreciation of HK$51.0
million since the acquisition of the property at HK$110.0 million in 2005.
The disposal was completed in June 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ET e (D

Discontinued Operations

The Group’s strategy is to engage in property-related investment and
dedicated to build a strong and diverse property and hospitality portfolio.
Accordingly the Group discontinued its financial services operations by
disposing of its entire interest in VXLFSL and VXL International Leasing
Co. Limited in July and August 2007 respectively. These disposals
contributed additional funds to the Group’s ongoing projects and also
enabled the Group to focus on its core business on property investment and

hospitality.

FUTURE PLAN

The Group’s consistent growth is to be sustained by the continued
acquisition of high-quality properties in the Greater China regions. In the
coming year, the Group will continue to move onto property investment

and hospitality related projects.

The Group aims at building a brand name of “U” Inn hotels for providing
quality and “value for money” budget hotels for business travelers and
tourists, in order to take advantage of the rapid and stable growth in
economy and tourism in the PRC market. The Group continues to acquire
hotel properties with a view to establishing a scalable network of budget
hotels and extending its reach in various cities and provinces in the PRC for
recurrent income and long-term capital appreciation. It is expected that the
acquired hotel properties will start to generate income for the Group by the

fourth quarter of 2008, after renovation is completed.

A strong emphasis will continue to be placed on the Kai Tak Cruise
Terminal project. The Group will study carefully the retender terms of the
cruise terminal in due course. By taking part in the cruise terminal project,
the Group aims to bring a robust “Cruise Economy” to Hong Kong. The
cruise terminal project aims to attract world-class cruises as well as affluent
cruise passengers from all over the world, turning Hong Kong into an

“Asian Regional Cruise Hub,” and the gateway to the rest of the PRC.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
L 5 A R 2

O A% 1k 585 2R

ARG Z R T e EM BB > K
TE T 3 8 K K 25 oAb A 36 K T I SR AL
o Bk REMP _BZELELH XN
H 53 0 B L e A S il R B
LA PR 23 ] 2 R 25 o A% ok I 4 il Al
BREREY - ZENERALEABAHA
P BEAAN G 4 o S A AR 1 45 b B R IL )
SRR A0 o

AR wt #

A S5 7 W AT 50 K o 4 B i
BL 3 o ACAE 5 AR S L 0V R ) 6 4 S
GBS ST LB

AC G5 5 AR o [l | 2 3 0% R T
BN B Rk % 38 8RB AR A AR
T G > DLAE A o 1 A8 i 0 3 TR R
JE W 3 R v M A o A 52 L A 2 I S N
S > T S 3L T4 K R A Y I A A%
SR M ) b B R A T DA AR E
e N\ B = 391 A 384 4L o TR o AW S 1
AR T\ ARG Y F 50 R TR AR
BH 46 s A AR A AR

A 45 )51 A A 3 RO TR R S B H > 3
A J IR 0% 7 RTS8 T O B A K o A
F2HEBEEIEE > ALEB) KT E
A 2 [ iy 4 5 | o T o 5 BEUE H OB AR 5
2 BRHE S A T o DL % R M Y R o e R > 4T
A WAL B Ay [ R Y T i i | DL R A
I L At b [ B P P



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to our
valued clients, shareholders and business associates for their continued
support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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Year’s Events

AY

A

2007 3rd Quarter
SRBUEREF

2007 4th Quarter
“ERRUERNFE

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
L 5 A R 2

The Company announced final results for fifteen months ended 31 March 2007.
ARAFAMBRERZLEZA=Z+— b+ T8 A Z R B 84 -

AGM was held on 22 August 2007.
PR RE R RF LS\ T HET -

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing retired as an Independent Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company following the conclusion of the AGM
held on 22 August 2007.
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Completion of the disposal of the entire issued share capital of VXLFSL.
56 )8 A LB AR SR 2 AT BT IR -

The Company announced that ordinary resolutions approving the Share Subdivision and
the Bonus Warrants Issue by the Shareholders at EGM held at 6 August 2007.
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The Company announced the disposal of 45% equity interests in and shareholder’s loan
owing by Million Sky Investments Limited. The disposal would allow the Group to focus
its resources on its core business, including property-related investment which anticipates
to have promising prospects.
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The Company announced the acquisition of 5 hotel properties in the PRC from China Post
Group for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$123.9 million. This acquisition
was part of the Group’s strategy to acquire a scalable network of hotel properties and extend
its reach to and build up its property portfolio in various provinces in the PRC.
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The Company announced the disposal of 112 Apartments for a cash consideration of
HKS$161 million. Net proceeds from the disposal would provide the Group with cash flow
for other investment opportunities to enhance the quality of Group’s property portfolio
should suitable opportunity arises.
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The Company announced interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2007.
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2008 1st Quarter
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2008 2nd Quarter
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Year’s Events (Continued)
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The Company announced the Group has entered into a shareholders’ agreement dated

7 January 2008 (and as supplemented on 6 March 2008) with the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of three renowned real estate developers and managers and an experienced
cruise operator to form the joint venture company for the purpose of preparing and
submitting a tender in relation to the development of a cruise terminal at the former Kai
Tak Runway, Kowloon.
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The Company announced the acquisition of 12 hotel properties in the PRC from China
Post Group for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$191 million. The
acquisition was completed part of the Group’s strategy of establishing a brand name of
quality budget hotel chain in the PRC.
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Completion of the disposal of 112 Apartments.
S S

The Company announced the disposal of 90% equity interests in Moral High for a net
consideration of approximately HK$700.6 million. Moral High’s principal asset was the
investment in Peak Moral High and owned Changshou Properties. Net proceeds shall be
used for future property-related investments by the Group.
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Directors’ Commentaries

B B

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Turnover

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group achieved a turnover of
HK$20.1 million from its continuing operations, mainly comprising rental
income from an investment property and fair value gain from listed

investments.

The turnover increased by 67.7% compared to the fifteen months ended 31
March 2007 as a result of significant increase in the fair value gain from
listed securities investments and the steady rental income from the serviced
apartment tower, 112 Apartments. During the year, the Group has recorded
a fair value gain of HK$9.9 million from listed investments, mainly

resulting from the revaluation of trading securities as at 31 March 2008.

Other revenue and gain

The Group recorded a total fair value gain of HK$143.3 million from both
112 Apartments and Changshou Properties resulting from the revaluation of
the properties. In addition, the Group also generated an interest income of

HK$0.3 million during the year.

Operating Expenses

The operating costs for the year increased by 50.4% to HK$84.1 million
compared to HK$56.0 million for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2007. As part of the plan to grasp extensive business opportunities arising
from the opening of the PRC market, the Group has established a team of
management staff in the PRC to manage China projects, including
Changshou Properties and the budget hotel chain. This has led to increase
in operating expenses, which mainly comprised staff costs, office rental
payments, and depreciation of office premises. In addition, legal and
professional costs and consultancy fees also increased as a result of various

corporate activities carried out by the Group during the year.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

Non-current Assets

During the year, the Group has acquired and entered into agreements to
acquire a total of 28 budget hotels in different provinces in China. The
hotels are recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment in the balance sheet
on completion of acquisition. The Group has entered into Sales and
Purchase Agreements to dispose of its investment properties, both the 112
Apartments and Changshou Properties. Both investment properties have
contributed sizable fair value gain to the Group since their acquisitions. The
disposal of 112 Apartments was completed in June 2008 and the disposal of
Changshou Properties will be completed in August 2008. Details of the
disposals are disclosed in the Business Review and Corporate Development

section in the Chairman’s Statement.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group maintained a bank and cash balance of HK$29.5 million as of
31 March 2008. Cash reserves have been placed with major banks in Hong
Kong and the PRC in the form of Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi

deposits mainly.

As of 31 March 2008, the Group had total borrowings of HK$959.9
million, including bank loans of HK$500.3 million, other loans of
HK$271.5 million, obligations under finance leases of HK$0.4 million and
an ultimate holding company loan of HK$187.7 million. Bank loans of
HK$500.3 million are payable as follows: HK$25.2 million due within one
year; HK$342.4 million due after one year and within five years; and
HK$132.7 million due after 5 years. Other loans and the loan from the
ultimate holding company are payable within one year. Obligations under

finance leases will mature within four years.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)
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As of 31 March 2008, the Group had a gearing ratio of 260.9% (2007:
69.8%), which is measured on the basis of the Group’s total interest-bearing
debt net of cash reserves over the shareholders’ funds. The significant
increase in the gearing ratio during the year is primarily due to the
drawdown of bank loans to finance the Group’s acquisition of Changshou

Properties and hotel properties.

With the completion of the disposal of 112 Apartments and Changshou
Properties, it is expected that the total borrowings will be reduced

significantly in the upcoming year.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had a total of 62 employees, including
Executive Directors. The Group’s remuneration policy and packages for the
Executive Directors and senior management are reviewed and recommended
by the RQN Committee and approved by the Board on an annual basis
while that for other employees’ are reviewed and approved by the Chief
Executive Officer. The Group remunerates its employees based on industry
practice and the performance of each individual. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses, medical insurance, and defined contribution
retirement plans, and provides a share option scheme for its employees and

Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Chairman and member of the EC @

Aged 53. Datuk Lim has been appointed as the Chairman and Executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Datuk Lim holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree of The London School of Economics, England. Datuk Lim has
substantial investment and management experience in a wide range of
industries including plantations, leisure and entertainment, construction,
property development and information technology. Prior to joining the
Group, Datuk Lim was the Deputy Managing Director of Genting Berhad
and the Joint Managing Director of Asiatic Development Berhad during
1985 to 1990, and an alternate Non-executive Director of Asia Financial
Holdings Limited during 1997 to 2002. Datuk Lim was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of Dataprep Holdings Berhad in 2002 and resigned
from the post in February 2004 when he continued to serve that company
as an Executive Director. Genting Berhad and Asiatic Development Berhad
are listed on the Main Board of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
Dataprep Holdings Berhad on the Second Board of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, and Asia Financial Holdings Limited on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Datuk Lim is also a Director and beneficial
shareholder of VXLCPL which is a Substantial Shareholder of the Company
under the SFO.

Profiles of Directors

o i iR

o

WATHF

SRKBEE ZHRAGTEREG A
L=k - hEEH -FFWENA
“HEHRERER R RRATESR MK
BB R A 3 B A 3RS W 2 Bt (The London
School of Economics)F #8 J 5 +- £ fif o #k
EBERZMITRER U HRE R
RBR: RAEEA WP R g B Y
260 T R 3 o A i S A AR
B UNEEE—NZBEYH -
¥ % Genting Berhad # # 5l 8 B J Asiatic
Development Berhad i I i # 5 4 48 24 5 ifij
B EEEZRT TEYE - Y5
A N 4 A (3 ) A BR 4w B AE R
HTER R OBFEEREEERER
Dataprep Holdings Berhad i 47 B 48K > 3 ji
TRRPUAE T BT AT B R — R E 4B A
B A %5 847 % F ° Genrting Berhad K Asiatic
Development Berhady i J§ 2 W4 i 28 5 Fir
(Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) ER LT ~
Dataprep Holdings Berhad HIll i 5§ 2 V4 5 52 &)
JIf (Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)% — T 85
b s v N e A () AR A R R
WU AZ it AR b o bk FE AR & VXLCPLI
HREREREA N > B GESRR &
B) > %A ) B AR B B

Annual Report 4E3}
2007-2008

13



Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, Group President and Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the EC "V and member of the RQNC ”

Aged 45. Mr. A. Chao has been appointed as an Executive Director, the
Group President and the Chief Executive Officer since 1 March 2005. Mr.
A. Chao has extensive experience in the property field both in Hong Kong
and Asia. He was engaged in property investment and development in Hong
Kong during the last 19 years. Mr. A. Chao started his property business in
1988 and developed his company into an integrated real estate group in
Hong Kong and Asia with businesses encompassing such diverse areas as
property agency, property investment/development, estate management and
cleaning service, interior design and contracting business. He also has years
of experience in the corporate development, business planning, advertising,
direct marketing and publishing industries. Mr. A. Chao is also a Director
and Beneficial Shareholder of Huge More Limited which is a Substantial
Shareholder of the Company under the SFO.

Mr. XIAO Huanwei, Member of the EC?

Aged 50. Mr. Xiao is the President - China of the Group since July 2006.
Mr. Xiao has over twenty-one years’ professional experience in business
investment, operation and management in the Mainland China. He was
engaged in the establishment and management of the first joint venture
company affiliated to Shanghai Post & Tele-communication Management
Bureau from 1986 to 1991. In 1992, he participated in the formation of
Ming Sheng Group and acted as the General Manager of its Shanghai
branch. He was the President of Ming Sheng Group from 1994 to 2000 and
was responsible for various functions including investment, real estate
development, import and export, logistics, computer network and
communications. Prior to joining the Group, he found an educational and
financial service company in Australia which was in cooperation with the
Bank of Communication in China and Australia Westpac to provide overall

financial solutions to students from China.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. P., Member of the AC? and the RQNC ¥

Aged 64. Mr. Smith has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Mr. Smith holds an LL.B. (Hons) degree of
Bristol University, England. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in
1967 and in Hong Kong in 1970. He was elected a council member of the
Stock Exchange on two occasions. He was a member of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government’s Economic Advisory
Committee, and was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform for ten years. Mr. Smith was the Vice
Chairman, Pacific Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, a leading global
investment bank from 1997 until his retirement in December 2001. He was
also the Chief Executive of Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to 1994 and
the Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Smith
has over 29 years of investment banking experience in Asia. Mr. Smith is an
Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed companies
including Star Cruises Limited, Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited, Frasers
Property (China) Limited and The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Limited which are listed on the Stock Exchange; Asia Credit Hedge Fund,
CQS Asia Feeder Fund Limited, CQS Asia Master Fund Limited, CQS
Convertible and Quantitative Strategies Feeder Fund Limited and LIM Asia
Arbitrage Fund Limited which are listed on The Irish Stock Exchange; KGR
Absolute Return PCC Limited which is listed on The London Stock
Exchange; Noble Group Limited and United International Securities
Limited which are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited and Global
Investment House, KSC which is listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange, Bahrain

Stock Exchange and Dubai Financial Market respectively.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P., Chairman of the RQNC Y and member of the
ACY

Aged 68. Dr. Lee has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 6 October 2005. Dr. Lee holds an honorary degree of Doctor
of Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an
honorary degree of Doctor of Laws of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lee was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991. Dr. Lee was also a member of the
Hong Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. He is currently the
Chairman of Pacific Dimensions Consultants Limited and Jada Electronics
Limited. He has also taken an active role in public services. Dr. Lee is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Giordano International Limited,
ITE (Holdings) Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited, Sam Woo Holdings
Limited, Wang On Group Limited and AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited, and was an Independent Non-executive Director of Interchina
Holdings Company Limited until 1 March 2006, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

Mr. David YU Hon To, Chairman of the AC @ and member of the RQNC @

Aged 60. Mr. Yu has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director since 1 May 2007. Mr. Yu is a founder and director of MCL
Capital Limited (formerly known as “Management Capital Limited”), a
Hong Kong-based firm, which is engaged in direct investment and provides
corporate financial advisory services. He is a fellow member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a partner
of an international accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate
finance. Mr. Yu is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of

several listed companies in Hong Kong.

Notes:
(1) EC — Executive Committee of the Board
(2)  AC — Audit Committee of the Board

(3) RQNC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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Corporate Governance Report
e AR R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the

Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2008.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving

for the highest returns to our Shareholders.

Our principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality Board,
sound internal control, independence, transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders. Both the Board and the management are committed to
continuously improving corporate governance practices and an ethical

corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, with minor

deviations as stated below.

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation whereas the
CG Code A.4.2 states that each Director shall retire by rotation at least
once every three years. As the Board consists of six Directors and each of
them retires in every three years, this effectively achieves the same objective

as set out in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Pursuant to Code A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the Non-executive
Directors, except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., are appointed for specific
term. However, as one-third of all the Directors of the Company are subject
to retirement by rotation at each AGM pursuant to Article 133 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Board considers that sufficient
measures have been made to ensure that the Company's corporate

governance practices are no less exacting than those stipulated in the CG

Code.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board comprises six Directors
including three Executive Directors, namely, Datuk LIM Chee Wah (the
Chairman), Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (the Chief Executive
Officer) and Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei,
J.P. and Mr. David YU Hon To.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience, expertise and independence.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Director’s Nomination and Appointment

In April 2006, the Company adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint
a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
Shareholders (being two or more Sharcholders holding not less than one-
tenth of the entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to
nominate candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval
at general meeting. The RQN Committee can also nominate candidates for
directorship for appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the next AGM and be eligible

for re-election.

The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed Directors to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the

business and governance policies of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Practices

The Board holds meeting regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for all
other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
During the period under review, the Board agreed procedures to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to discharge their

duties, as provided in the “Guideline on Independent Professional Advice”.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2008 and its

attendance record is set out below:

Directors

HH

Datuk LIM Chee Wah SR bR

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO e A S 2k

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi [ RN

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P S A A AL

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P 2 et oK P A+
Mr. David YU Hon To" AT e

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing" AR

Note:
(1) Appointed on 1 May 2007

(2) Resigned on 22 August 2007
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Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment and
conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, representing half of the full Board
members. One of Independent Non-executive Directors possess accounting
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board
received from each Independent Non-executive Director a written
confirmation of their independence and has satisfied their independence as

required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term except
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P., who does not have a fixed term of
appointment, but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM. According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
who served longest on the Board, shall retire but shall be eligible for re-
election at the AGM. Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board
will ensure each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three

years in order to comply with the Code Provisions of the Listing Rules.

According to the Articles of Association, a Director appointed to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election by

Shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment.

Relationship

There is no family relationship among the Directors, senior management or

substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In order to ensure a balance of power and authority, the responsibilities of
the Chairman, Datuk LIM Chee Wah and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, are segregated and have clearly defined in
the “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer”.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the
Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

There are Audit Committee, Executive Committee and RQN Committee of
the Group. Reports of committee meetings are presented to the Board

regularly.

Executive Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Executive Committee comprises
all the Executive Directors. The Executive Committee is chaired by Mr.
Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAQO, the Chief Executive Officer, and the two
other members are Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi.

The Executive Committee is delegated to responsible for the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. David YU Hon To (appointed on 1 May 2007 and re-
designated as Chairman on 22 August 2007) and the other two members

are Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P,, and Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ]J.P..

The Audit Committee’s main duties are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the External Auditors, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the External Auditors, and any questions

of resignation or dismissal of that Auditors;

(2) to develop and implement policy on the engagement of External

Auditors for provision of non-audit services;

(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim reports and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board;

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2008 and its attendance record is set out below:

Directors

R

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, .2 LR N O

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.2 L L v N 2 e
Mr. David YU Hon To"" AT S A

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing" REKIED

Note:
(1)  Appointed on 1 May 2007

(2)  Resigned on 22 August 2007

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 March 2008 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
review of External Auditors audit plan and interim, annual financial
statements and results announcement as well as audit reports. It has also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and

approved the internal audit report.

RQN Committee

The RQN Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Committee
is chaired by Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. and the other three members are
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO and
Mr. David YU Hon To (appointed on 1 May 2007).
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to Attend Attendance Rate (%)

JRE H R Ok B il R/e 1 i #(%)
2 2 100

2 2 100

2 2 100

1 0 0
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The RQN Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal
duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all directors and members of senior
management and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based

remuneration policy.

The RQN Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 March

2008 and its attendance record is set out below:

RQNZE H & A7 K 0] o i B e s J) > L 2%
Wik B 2 R A 2 W) BT A S 3 T v AR B
B 2 557 I 1B SR e ZRME sk ] T I 45 7 T 1B
R IER KRBV ENER > ME ST
B2 3t 4 7S A

ROQNZHGRBE_FZNFE=A=Z+—
H ok 4 B2 A B AT 7 — Rk > L R R B
WAE

Eligibility to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
#H JE H i Uk B % K B % R (%)
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P 25 06 R 1 K Al 1 1 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.2. P N 1 1 100
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO jE T S A 1 0 0
Mr. David YU Hon To"” AT e A 1 1 100
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing" ReEREY 1 0 0
Notes: it

(1)  Appointed on 1 May 2007

(2)  Resigned on 22 August 2007

The main works performed by the RQN Committee during the year ended
31 March 2008 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
recommendation and approval of the fees and remuneration and fees of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors. It has also reviewed and

recommended the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests of the Directors in Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company

Name of Directors Nature of Interests

HHEAWH HE 18 1

Datuk LIM Chee Wah Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests
FE A TR ey 2 e 4 — 2 v B 2

Interests in Warrants — Corporate Interests
PR B Z A - AR
Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests

T B JBE M < M A — M B

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO  Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests

o e S e A WA 2 BE 25— 2 F) RE 2R
Interests in Warrants — Corporate Interests
TARERS 2 HE 25 — 4 W] BE 2R
Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests

T S JBE M < M — M B 2

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi Interests in Share Options — Personal Interests
BRER Lt i Bk B M < M A — M B

1SR E RO ()

3 M AT AR R Y 8 O HE AR

BRERBZANE=ZA=Z1—H RBGERK
B AR A ) 58 = T R A A ]
A7 10 8 A T AR A T A4 R AT
RO A B B FE R g 3 T (3% Gt 2 T 391
£ WA ) SEXCVR i BT 1 9 ) B B > A
I Tty B A RE > SO 9 L i L D) B A
b 1~ J) )y 2800 o A A ) % Wi 22 T 1 e
BeRAWT

B H R A 4 v B A B A B By B
HE £

Ordinary Shares/ Approx. %
underlying Shares of Issued

Note of HK$0.01 each Shares
o I i .0.013 G 8T
ZWHER R

Hi ik HH B e A H 4 (%)
1 1,069,308,000 69.90%
2 153,861,600 -
3 4,400,000 -

1,227,569,600
4 300,000,000 19.61%
5 60,000,000 -
3 4,400,000 -
364,400,000
3 4,400,000 -
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Notes:

The corporate interests of 1,069,308,000 Shares are held by VXLCPL, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah (“Datuk
Lim”). The interests in 1,069,308,000 Shares comprises 769,308,000 Shares
which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and 300,000,000 Shares which are
deemed to be interested by VXLCPL as security interests. The 300,000,000
Shares are duplicated with the interests of Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
(“Mr. A. Chao”) as set out in Note 4 of this section and the interests of
VXLCPL and Huge More Limited (“Huge More”) as set out in Note 2 of the

section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities”.

The corporate interests of 153,861,600 Warrants are held by VXLCPL and
duplicated with the interests of VXLCPL as set out in Note 3 of the section

“Substantial Shareholders” Interests in Securities”.

Details of the interests in Share Options are set out separately in the section

“Share Options Scheme” at Reports of Directors.

The corporate interests of 300,000,000 Shares are held by Huge More, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao. The 300,000,000
Shares are duplicated with the security interests deemed to be interested by
VXLCPL as set out in Note 1 of this section and the interests of VXLCPL and
Huge More as set out in Note 2 of the section “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities”.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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5. The corporate interests of 60,000,000 Warrants are held by Huge More and
duplicated with the interests of Huge More as set out in Note 4 of the section

“Substantial Shareholders” Interests in Securities”.

6. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares or

underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of every person, other

than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

HHAW

VXL Capital Partners

Corporation Limited

Huge More Limited

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
30 i 4 LA W

Nature of Interests

HE 5 P

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

TA e 2 B 2 — B 2 B

Interests in Shares — Security Interests

TA IR 2 i 2 — R 8 M 2

Interests in Warrants — Beneficial Interests

A I 2 HE AR — AR AR

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

TA B 2 Wi — T i 2

Interests in Warrants — Beneficial Interests

T e B < Ml 2 — BT A A

BRERRANE=ZA=Z1—H o REBGEHREK
IR RB) 58 =1 =N BRI B A A B A2 A
V8 3 G AR > B AR O T HE o R AT B A R
LA B N T A A 0 e A K A TR IRy o

MEAR SR AT ¢
Ordinary Shares/
underlying Shares

Note of HK$0.01 each

B 0.013 T
ZEEmE

A il g
1&2 769,308,000
2 300,000,000

3 153,861,600

1,223,169,600

2 300,000,000
4 60,000,000
360,000,000

Approx. %
of Issued
Shares

e BT
JBe By I HE &4
T 43 be (%)

50.29%

19.61%

19.61%
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Notes:
1. 769,308,000 Shares are beneficially owned by VXLCPL, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Datuk Lim, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive

Director of the Company. Datuk Lim is also a director of VXLCPL.

2. 300,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Huge More and are deemed to
be interested by VXLCPL as security interests. Huge More is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao, the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. A. Chao is also a Director of Huge
More. These 300,000,000 Shares duplicated among themselves in this section
and as set out in Notes 1 and 4 of the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Interests in Securities”.

3. 153,861,600 Warrants are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and duplicated with
the interests of Datuk Lim as set out in Note 2 of the section “Directors’ and

Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities”.

4. 60,000,000 Warrants are beneficially owned by Huge More and duplicated with
the interests of Mr. A. Chao as set out in Note 5 of the section “Directors’ and

Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities”.

5. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares and

underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no other interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company were recorded

in the register maintained under section 336 of the SFO.

1SR E RO (]

]
ml-

1. 769,308,000 Bt 4% J5 A 24 W] # & £ 5 3
PITEFREE2ERERERNAF
VXLCPLE #i #EH » MR J5 & VXLCPL Y
i

2. 300,000,000/8 & £ 75 HiHuge More®t %5 ¥
Ao BB % BVXLCPLDA PR 8 HE 25 J5 S HE
A o Huge MoreJ% B A2 R AT B 483K 3k BLAT
WHBRERE R A B RESRE
Huge Moreft) # 2 < ¥ 300,000,000 J§tJBit 4
TP A B T 0t 41 e o T BT o T AT B A 3K
PR 5 W A ] — B PR S 1 S 49T SR 2 R o

3. 153,861,600 i Bt W 7% 75 HVXLCPLEE 25
fio WH [EH RATHARN B SR —
T B 5 2 T b S B M E 2% R o

4. 60,000,0001% 5 i #E % 75 i Huge More® 7
BEA o ol BT SR AT WA R 0 25 A
— 7 B 5 0 RS S8 A 1 2 L

5. Rl B EE 2 BT A HE A% 3 45 B4y SR B B
ZHAR e

Br LSRN R FFNEZA
=+ B Mg GESFR LW & D
= = AR A R 8 e A A T e O At
TP JBE Aoy S8 R B Ay 1 O 2 R AT

Annual Report 4E3}
2007-2008

31



32

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
2 IR W ()

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s External Auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers. The External
Auditors provide an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Auditors to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Sharcholders, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee is
obliged to ensure External Auditors’ continuing objectivity and to safeguard

their independence.

Details of the audit and non-audit fees on services rendered to the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in the financial statements of

this Annual Report.

DIRECTOR’S AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008,
which give a true and fair view of the financial performance of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2008. In preparing these
consolidated financial statements, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and made judgments under circumstances and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the international auditor of the Company, has
pany:
presented their responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out

on page 46 to 48.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

In the Company, the Board has overall responsibility for internal control
and reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal and
that the interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it
for decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial,

operational and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code C2.1 of the CG Code, the Group reviewed the need for
an internal audit function in April 2006 and considered it was appropriate
to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit functions.
Accordingly, the Company has decided to engage an external accounting
firm as Internal Auditors to provide internal audit services to the Group on

an annual basis.
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The Internal Auditors have conducted evaluation and tests in connection
with the following managements assertions for the year ended 31 March

2008:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group including financial

reporting, operational and compliance controls is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

The Internal Auditors also formulate the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of
each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans
and makes recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to
the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any

material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1, the
Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the Group and
further improve the system with respect to financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the

guidance of the Board.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all
relevant circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the

proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange following

the general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as Chairman of the Audit Committee and RQN Committee, or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the

Shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through websites

of the Stock Exchange and http://www.vxlcapital.com.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT JLE AN RS

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge RIEERERAHELIEER At s »
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more 7 2 & i 52 B8 47 A48 1T i B 2 W 47 H
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior WA BB TR A AR A W OB AT R

to the issue of this annual report. 25%PA L o

On behalf of the Board RE R G

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO 17 H8#

Chief Executive Officer o i M o A

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008 T EF)NFELITNAH

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note

18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by business and geographical segments of the Group’s
performance, assets and liabilities for the year is set out in Note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 49.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate turnover attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 19.9% of
the Group’s total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s

largest customer was approximately 5.9% of the Group’s total turnover.
g PP y P

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 41.7% of the
Group’s total purchase and the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest

supplier was approximately 13.2% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers

or suppliers noted above.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY

Details of the principal property of the Group held for investment purposes

are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donation of HK$Nil during the year (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2007: HK$1,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 29

to the consolidated financial statements.
The deficit on distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2008,

calculated under section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

approximately HK$12,976,000 (2007: surplus HK$19,277,000).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial periods/years is set out on page 153.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Key terms of the Scheme are summarized below:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the growth and development of the

Group;

The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and including any Executive Director
but excluding any Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested

Entity (as defined in the Scheme);

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is
144,000,000 which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the Scheme and after subdivision
of share (representing approximately 9.4% of the issued share capital

as at the date of the Annual Report);
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(iv) The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon

v)

exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme unless
approval from the Company’s Sharcholders has been obtained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an
option is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options to
a substantial Shareholder or any of their respective Associates in
aggregate more than 0.1% of Shares in issue, and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price on the date of such grant, in excess of

HKS$5 million, must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting;

(vi) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the

Scheme at any time during a period (which may not expire later than
10 years from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to each
grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement on the minimum period for which
any option granted or to be granted must be held or the performance

targets which must be achieved before the option can be exercised;

(vii) A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for

the grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon
acceptance of the option. An option may be accepted by a grantee

within 28 days from the date of offer of grant of the option;
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

(viii) The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option
granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official
closing prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme;

and

(ix) The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by

resolution of the Sharcholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

As at 31 March 2008, details of share options granted to Directors and

employees under the Scheme and outstanding are:—
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No. of Share options

W IR F
Exercise

Price Share Cancelled Share

per options  Granted  Exercise [Lapsed options

Date of Exercise Share asat during during during asat

Grantees Grant Period (HK$)  1/4/2007  the year the year theyear  31/3/2008
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Directors: #E

Datuk LIM Chee Wah SEMBE 23082007 23/812007 to 0.77 - 4,400,000 - ~ 4,400,000
22/08/2012

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO et 23/8/2007  23/8/2007 to 0.77 - 4,400,000 - — 4,400,000
22/08/2012

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi BERLE 23080007 231812007 w0 0.7 4400000 - ~ 4400,000
22/08/2012

Employees: fEH :

Aggregate total of employees EEAL 231812007 231812007 to 0.77 - 28,800,000  (1,600,000) (6,000,000) 21,200,000

22/08/2012

42,000,000 (1,600,000)  (6,000,000) 34,400,000
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Notes:
1. The share options to subscribe for Shares are exercisable as to:
(i) For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less than
two years immediately before date of grant:
(a)  up to 20% immediately after date of grant;

(b)  up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of grant;
(c)  up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and

(d)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant.

(ii)  For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than two
years immediately before date of grant:

(a)  up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of grant;
(b)  up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and

(¢)  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date of

this Annual Report were:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing (resigned on 22 August 2007)

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. P.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J. .
Mr. David YU Hon Ton

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, who have been
longest in office since last election will retire by rotation at the forthcoming

AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 13 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2008, none of the Directors nor his/her associates was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, cither

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 15 May 2006, VXL Management Services Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement”) with Smart Forward Services Limited (“Smart Forward”), a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, to lease
the premises at Flat B, 56th Floor, Tower 1 and Car Parking No. 1-224 on
Ist Floor, The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(“Premises”) for a term of two years commencing on 15 May 2006 at a
monthly rent of HK$55,000. The Premises are used as housing
accommodation for staff or guests of the Company. The Tenancy Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company and details
of which were announced on 15 May 2006. For the year ended 31 March
2008, total rent paid in respect of the Tenancy Agreement was

HK$660,000.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors considered that the above Mo IERATE MR Lk B B AR S

continuing connected transaction has been entered into: T g 2 B,
(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (1) AREEZHW R REEBRERTT
(2) on normal commercial terms; and (2) FHE—MEmR X

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms (3) MRBAHMHBRES MARTRERS
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and B 1% T A K B 2 P A B R AT AR A ]
Shareholders as a whole. T JBe i) B A R 25 o

The External Auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the above AR 2 ] B A W A S N R b R A B

continuing connected transaction: YR
(1) have been approved by the Board; (1) CEFEFgHHE

(2) have been entered into in accordance with the terms as contained in (2) MU R N MR AR R 5 I
the Tenancy Agreement; and
(3) M JE AR AR N H R R RANELNA
(3) have not exceeded the caps as disclosed in the announcement of the I H A A b BT 8 AR B B 4
Company dated 15 May 2006. e

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS HEHEMAAHLEHE AR
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above and those transactions B b SC B % B AR B T AR B R R B
disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set out in Note 33 to the FE33 [ 7 & 55 | B e 88 % S5 &8 G b » AR
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to 2 ] B AT o] i JBS 2 R MG S 5T oL A 4R
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a (EBRERBAGRHEGH > MAAFEFA
party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, E Ay N R s | [ Y A = I
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time IR A AR BE AT R AR A o

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 18 to 36 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events after the date of Balance Sheet of the Company are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”), the External Auditors of the Company, PwC will retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

T8 3 A% Sl

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

TR 3% R K At AT A RT

To the shareholders of VXL Capital Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to
150, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31
March 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

33rd Floor Cheung Kong Center
Central Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
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Independent Auditors” Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Income Statement

A B WAt AR

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #k £ = FE N4 =H = — H IL4F S

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi T T

Continuing operations TR R
Turnover BEH 5 20,100 11,985
Other revenue HoAt e 25 5 9,512 -
Excess of fair value of net assets Fin WA B Y 8 7 2 T A

acquired over costs of acquisition Wi A 2 R - 91,536
Fair value gain on investment properties BB ENFEER 16 143,251 8,719
Staff costs 1% B AR 6 (22,409) (18,666)
Other operating expenses A 28 45 B 52 (61,735) (37,290)
Operating profit P 88,719 56,284
Finance income R3O 8 288 2,502
Finance costs Rl A 9 (58,425) (16,144)
Share of losses of associates JREA W 2 A ) s 4R (14) (74)
Profit before taxation [t Al a1 30,568 42,568
Taxation (charge)/credit BIE (G2 i) s 10 (26,841) 11,207
Profit for the year/period from continuing TR ER

operations ZEEN BN R 3,727 53,775
Discontinued operations DA LR S
Profit for the year/period from DRIERBERZEN

discontinued operations LU 11 3,837 9,769
Profit attributable to shareholders e T AN ) 12 7,564 63,544

HK cents HK cents
WAl WAl

Earnings per ordinary share from continuing A Al R AN, BN

operations attributable to shareholders of the JRE A A 8

Company for the year/period 2 B fi % 7 i i A

— Basic — A 13 0.24 3.67

~ Diluted - 13 0.24 3.67
Earnings per ordinary share from discontinued AR AR AN, BN

operations attributable to shareholders of the FEAG AR IR 28 2

Company for the year/period Z B i 7 i i A

— Basic P YN 13 0.25 0.66

— Diluted — 13 0.25 0.66

The notes on pages 58 to 150 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EERMER

Asat 31 March 2008 A —EENE=H=1+—H

2008 2007
“BRAE  SEBLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
P T#x T
Non-current assets IR A
Property, plant and equipment LE B T Y & 15(a) 141,825 5,550
Investment properties EVa2E/ESD 16 995,219 891,561
Land use rights = Ml i FH 17 37,379 -
Goodwill E2 — 18,314
Interests in associates i A I RERS 19 225 35,009
Available-for-sale financial asset Al AL Y B A 20 660 556
1,175,308 950,990
Current assets i B
Financial assets at fair value %A A% i 4H 75 5 iR
through profit or loss 2B ERE 21 21,753 16,505
Trade and other receivables B 5 Ko LA Wk D 22 75,056 6,506
Bank balances and cash SRAT AR KB 4x 23 29,526 20,970
126,335 43,981
Non-current assets held for sale HEHEZ IR E & 24 179,314 -
305,649 43,981
Current liabilities it B £1 05
Trade and other payables B 5 Ko A A) ik DE 25 76,847 409,881
Borrowings fE 3K 26 484,583 132,896
561,430 542,777
Net current liabilities i B 8 A E (255,781) (498,796)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE U B A 919,527 452,194
Non-current liabilities Bl E=E
Borrowings 1 26 475,360 97,086
Deferred tax liabilities PEERETE B 27 87,591 55,707
562,951 152,793
Net assets & 356,576 299,401

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
meEREREAEEK(H)

As at 31 March 2008 i —~EENFE=H=+—H

2008 2007
“RENE  CEBRLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$000
Fi T#x T

Financed by: &R
Share capital JBEA 28 15,296 15,280
Reserves ik i 29(a) 341,280 284,121
Shareholders’ funds % W& 4 356,576 299,401

Approved by the Board on 18 July 2008 and signed on behalf of the Board R-ZRENFELHH)\HEERGEBR

by WD FEEREE R GRS -
Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mzr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
SR bk B Fi: L e
Director Director
#HF HF

The notes on pages 58 to 150 form part of these consolidated financial SESSH BB 150H 2 Pl vk B A 55 6 B s Rk
statements. Z—HB 4 o
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Balance Sheet

HEARE

Asat 31 March 2008 A —EENE=H=1+—H

2008 2007
“BRAE  SEBLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
P T#x T
Non-current assets Ik v B
Property, plant and equipment LE B Y& 15(b) 926 3,624
Interests in subsidiaries B} e 2 v B 25 18 = 10,000
Available-for-sale financial asset A AL Y A BB 20 660 556
1,586 14,180
Current assets I B A
Financial assets at fair value FZ A TAE % W HE 73 51 R
through profit or loss ey 21 21,753 16,505
Trade and other receivables B 5 T A E Wk TE 22 3,212 1,465
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS b & 2 ) R JE 18 546,460 286,281
Bank balances and cash SRAT AR KBl 4 23 1,318 449
572,743 304,700
Current liabilities i B £
Trade and other payables B 5 e oAl E A~f 55k T8 25 2,913 2,058
Borrowings ik 26 187,779 129,896
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASK Bf S A ] 3K 0B 18 214,938 -
405,630 131,954
Net current assets T B R 167,113 172,746
Total assets less current liabilities H8 g U B A 168,699 186,926
Non-current liabilities e B £
Borrowings 15 26 — 86
Net assets & e A 168,699 186,840

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Balance Sheet (Continued)
A EE (E)

As at 31 March 2008 i —~EENFE=H=+—H

2008 2007
SEEAE CRBLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$000
Fi T#x T

Financed by: BRI -
Share capital JBE 2 28 15,296 15,280
Reserves fikta 29(b) 153,403 171,560
Shareholders’ funds g & 168,699 186,840

Approved by the Board on 18 July 2008 and signed on behalf of the Board WoFRNELAH\HEE RGBS

by WHL FTEFREEFGES
Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
2B bk B i T S 2k
Director Director
HH HH

The notes on pages 58 to 150 form part of these consolidated financial SESSH BB 150H 2 Pl vk B A 55 6 B s Rk
statements. Z—HB 4 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2008 # £ —~FEFNFE=H =1F—H IL4F &

Employee
Available-for-  share-based
Share Share sale financial compensation Exchange Retained
capital premium  assets reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
AR R A2
Bk RGRE WEEEGE REMERE  ELME  REA i
Note HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
i T T#7 T T T T T
At 1 January 2006 2 Y3 14,400 116,612 220 = = 62,280 193,512
—H—H
Changes in fair value of Wt
available-for-sale financial assets NP2 5 20 - - 80 - = = 80
Translation exchange difference SMESS R = = = = 7,588 - 7,588
Net income recognized directly LT
in equity ZBAFH - - 80 - 7,588 - 7,668
Issue of shares on placement L& BTy 28 880 33,797 = = - - 34,677
Net profit for the period S0 B SRHE A
attributable to shareholders ik = = = - - 63,544 63,544
At 31 March 2007 RERRLE
SHET= 15,280 150,409 300 - 7,588 125,824 299,401
Changes in fair value of W Hh B
available-for-sale financial assets NP2 5 20 - - 104 - = = 104
Translation exchange difference DhEHH 2K - - = = 44,046 = 44,046
Net income recognized directly NG
in equity ZWAFE - - 104 - 44,046 - 44,150
Employee share option benefits 18 B Rt A = = = 4,230 = = 4,230
Issue of new shares on exercise of R A0 i
share options BTH KL 28 16 1,640 - (425) = = 1,231
Net profit for the year A MR R A
attributable to shareholders ik - - - - - 7,564 7,564
At 31 March 2008 REZZNE
=H=1+—H 15,296 152,049 404 3,805 51,634 133,388 356,576

The notes on pages 58 to 150 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

maBleimaR

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #% £ —~ FFNFE=H =+ — H Ik 4F &

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Btk Tt T#T
Operating activities SRt
Continuing operations: FRERE KT -
Profit before taxation Bt Al ¥z A1 30,568 42,568
Adjustments for: i
Share of losses of associates R A Wi 2 2 ) e 4 14 74
Excess of fair value of net assets e WLV X 2 P
acquired over costs of acquisitions 768 208 WA A 2 B - (91,536)
Fair value gain on investment properties BEWEN TERT] (143,251) (8,719)
Interest income FLEWA (288) (2,502)
Interest expense s 58,425 16,144
Dividend income from listed investments B HRREZ K ERA (269) -
Depreciation and amortization e B 5,043 3,106
Provision for impairment of property, W ~ AR B
plant and equipment AR ] 5,775 =
Loss on disposal of property, IR B ~ HEAS
plant and equipment A e 15 114 12
Employee share option benefits A8 15 i B M 4 4,230 -
Changes in working capital BIEE S
— Increase in trade and other receivables — B 5 % HC At JE Wk JEL 3 (7,449) (35,958)
— Increase in trade and other payables — B 5y T At IR A K JE 31,142 21,975
— Increase in financial assets at fair - AP EEBRHER IR
value through profit or loss Vb s A (5,248) (15,914)
Net cash outflow from operating activities FRAR B B BT
of continuing operations Bl A (21,194) (70,750)
Discontinued operations: DR IEREET
Net cash inflow from operating activities DA EREERE RS
of discontinued operations 175 B B i A 14 9,172
Net cash outflow from operating activities £ 00 B B I AR (21,180) (61,578)
Annual Report 4t
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

A Bl ik ()

For the year ended 31 March 2008 # £ —~FEFNFE=H =1F—H IL4F &

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Btk Tt TH#T
Investing activities HRE W5
Continuing operations: T REET
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEAZE ~ BEAS S s s (133,540) (3,613)
Purchase of land use rights JifE A\ e b £ P R (35,610) =
Purchase of investment properties EAREY % (357,760) (279,053)
Payment of deposits for acquisition A W T S
of hotel properties 24 (62,197) =
Interest received e R B 288 2,393
Proceeds for disposal of property, UACK/E W 2 Y &)
plant and equipment Pk IE 340 -
Deposit received from disposal of C B TR
an investment property ZARE 32,200 =
Advances to an associate PRAERGK T — [ A F] (11) (900)
Repayment from an associate — [ 6 2 8 R 3R K — 3,089
Dividends received from an associate T W — )T 2 2 W) M G = 22
Dividends received from listed investments Bl B RE BB 269 =
Net cash outflow from investing R B e 2 A )
activities of continuing operations B4 ma (556,021) (278,062)
Discontinued operations: DA LR E R
Cash outflow from investing activities B0 B B i = (194)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, Hh B — I B g 2 =] B Ak
net of cash disposed (FMEEHEB4) 30 2,148 (63,228)
Proceeds from disposal of associates H B B A B A5k 35,931 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing CRIEREEEZ RETE B4
activities of discontinued operations WA Gitth) F 38,079 (63,422)
Net cash outflow from investing activities & I B 2 B4 (517,942) (341,484)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

w Bl ek (M

For the year ended 31 March 2008 # £ —~FEFNFE=H =—1F—H IL4F &

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Btk Tt T#T
Financing activities il 355 )
Continuing operations: FRERE T
Net proceeds from share placement JBe Ay B 5 P Ak S Y - 34,677
Increase in amount due to ultimate AT doe e o IE 8 W) 2
holding company R IE B 58,997 171,070
Deposits received from potential investors CUR TR AR 3 124 = 83,086
Repayment of bank loans &R P AT Bk (3,000) (77,000)
Secured bank loans drawn down PEEUA HGHERAT B3k 375,619 100,000
Repayment of other loans i 3 L Ath Bk (35,931) -
Other loans drawn down PR A Bk 218,463 =
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid B 22 il AL 5 AL 4 S AR A (389) (701)
Issue of new shares on exercise of share options PRI 47 i I #E 1T %5 47587 e 4y 1,231 =
Interest paid YRR DS (67,231) (11,032)
Net cash inflow from financing activities Fr AR SR 2 W )
of continuing operations Bl i AR 547,759 300,100
Discontinued operations: DA ILREEH
Net cash outflow from financing activities O I RS R Z A
of discontinued operations % B B = (92)
Net cash inflow from financing activities RVETE B 2 B A AT 547,759 300,008
Increase/(decrease) in cash and Bl KB4 FEY
cash equivalents Bm () 8,637 (103,054)
Cash and cash equivalents at RWUHA—H,/ —H—HZ
1 April/1 January B4 LB 4% 20,970 122,971
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 5o, 58 By 2 5 28 (81) 1,053
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March RE=HA=Z+—HZ
Bl MBI FHY 23 29,526 20,970

The notes on pages 58 to 150 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 S 255 i A B

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding,
securities trading, and provision of management services to
subsidiaries, whilst those of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements. Following the disposal of
VXLESL during the year, the Group’s financial services operation was
discontinued. The details of the discontinued operations are disclosed

in Note 11.

The Company has its listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding

company to be VXLCPL, incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been
consistently applied to all the year/period presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as modified
by the revaluation of the investment properties, the available-for-
sale financial assets and the financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

At 31 March 2008, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$255,781,000. The Group has been exploring possible
financing options. With the disposal of its investment properties
(Note 24) and 90% equity interests in its subsidiaries (Note 34),
the Group is expected to receive considerations of HK$161
million and HK$700.6 million respectively. Such proceeds will
be used to repay bank loans and other current liabilities to
improve the liquidity of the Group. In addition, subsequent to
the balance sheet date, the Group has obtained additional bank

loans and other loans for working capital purposes and for

financing its committed capital expenditure.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

A U 85 A W k(A

2. EREEBUR ()

2.1 #BBL % (4)
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AEBEARRH A &5 H
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161,000,000% ¢ 700,600,000 %
TG o % S K TEIF A1 AE R SR AT B
kB Al By A s DL AR
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SRAT Bk K H Al sk o AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standard, amendment and interpretations to existing standards

effective during the year ended 31 March 2008

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures”, and
the complementary amendment to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements — Capital
disclosures”, introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact on
the classification and valuation of the Group’s financial
instruments, or the disclosures relating to taxation and

trade and other payables;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, “Scope of HKFRS 27, requires
consideration of transactions involving the issuance of
equity instruments, where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the fair value of the
equity instruments issued in order to establish whether
or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. This
Standard does not have any impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements;

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

60 i 4 A R A A

2. EREEBUR ()

2.1 # BB % (4)

@) REZFEFNF=ZA=+—H
Ak AF JE 2 A% 2 R R B A i
R 19 16 7T R it FE

T ¥ W7 Rk 5 R SR
9% [l T H - 38| »
B 7 ok ko Bl 58 1 8
Z il FEAEET o [ B B
KEHR-EAME] T
AT B 4x b B i B
B BLE M B AR 4
SRl TR 0 4 B Al A
A RBLIE KR 5 R
b JE Ak 5k T 3 46 A i B2
3

s (1 B B s 5 a
BZAEH) @ BES
9% o [ 7 v B B R A e
W) S8 25% i ] BLE
AP REBEATRER THRB
25— BT WCHL Y )
i ) XA A A BT B 4T HE
#5 T H A A P — b
it 78 JC 5 J8 0 A v B
M5 4 e R SR 2 9% B di
B A o ok e ) A 4R
B £ B T 25 i 2R I A AT
il 5% %% 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U 85 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUR ()

2.1 #BBL % (4)

@ REZFEFNF=ZA=+—H
Ak 4F JE 2 3% 2 R R B A i

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standard, amendment and interpretations ro existing standards

effective during the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued)

HKIFRIC) — Int 10, “Interim financial reporting and
impairment”, prohibits the impairment losses
recognized in an interim period on goodwill and

investments in equity instruments and in financial

R g 16 7T R it BE (A)

s (12 B B 4 R
BZEHE)-Z2RB®E10
W% [ op B R &
TRAE ] > 2%k AE

assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent i R e AR A ) B 1
balance sheet date. This Standard does not have any WA ST HBEM
impact on the Group’s financial statements; and B A

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, “HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions”. HK(IFRIC) — Int 11
provides guidance on whether share-based transactions
involving treasury shares or involving Group entities
(for example, options over a parent’s shares) should be
accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-
based payment transactions in the stand-alone
financial statements of the parent and Group
companies. This interpretation does not have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(6)

(c)

Interpretations to existing standards effective during the year
ended 31 March 2008 but not relevant to the Group’s

operation

The following interpretations to existing Standards are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2007 but they are not relevant to the Group’s

operations:

e  HK(IFRIC) - Int 7, “Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29, Financial reporting in

hyper-inflationary economies”; and
M y

D HK({FRIC) — Int 9, “Re-assessment of embedded

derivatives”.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yer effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2008 or later periods, but the Group has

not early adopted them:

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U 85 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of financial
statements” (effective from 1 January 2009). HKAS 1
(Revised) requires all changes in equity to be presented
in a statement of changes in equity. All comprehensive
income is presented in one statement of
comprehensive income or in two statements (a separate
income statement and a statement of comprehensive
income). It requires presenting a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period in a complete set of financial statements when
there are retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change the
recognition measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by other
HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised)
from 1 April 2009;

HKAS 23 (Amendment), “Borrowing costs” (effective
from 1 January 2009). HKAS 23 (Amendment)
requires an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale)
as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be
removed. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Amendment) from 1 April 2009;

2. EREEBUR ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” (effective from annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009). HKAS 27
(Revised) requires non-controlling interests (i.e.
minority interests) to be presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity of the owners of the parent.
Total comprehensive income must be attributed to the
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
the loss of control are accounted for within equity.
When control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and
liabilities and related equity components of the former
subsidiary are derecognized. Any gain or loss is
recognized in consolidated income statement. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary is
measured at its fair value at the date when control is
lost. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1
April 2010;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao U 5 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUR ()

2.1 #BBL % (4)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing (c) 1 A 4k 3 Je Ak 4 [ if JE 42 2
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early R 2 Rl & B 177 3 Al B9 15
adopted by the Group (Continued) AT it FE (#F)

. HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based payment o TV Btk UE HI SE2
vesting conditions and cancellations” (effective from 1 HE (RAETT) > [0 ey
January 2009). HKFRS 2 (Amendment) clarifies the Fy FEHE G AF K B B A5

definition of “vesting conditions” and specifies the
accounting treatment of “cancellations” by the
counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement.

Vesting conditions are service conditions (which

fEREES](H=FFh
HF—H - HBEK -
W% & WA [ o 1
52 2 3 5T W 55— J5 DA

require a counterparty to complete a specified period JBE oy o HE B 1 3% A & HE
of service) and performance conditions (which require AT (R85 0 & 51 R
a specified period of service and specified performance B o SR R R S —
targets to be met) only. All “non-vesting conditions” J5 78 56 W 38 R MR L K
and vesting conditions that are market conditions shall 78 50 B 38 8 i 5 W) K 2
be taken into account when estimating the fair value |5 BRI ERE

of the equity instruments granted. All cancellations are

accounted for as an acceleration of vesting and the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yer effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business combinations”
(effective for business combinations with acquisition
date on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009).
HKEFRS 3 (Revised) may bring more transactions into
acquisition accounting as combinations by contract
alone and combinations of mutual entities are brought
into the scope of the standard and the definition of a
business has been amended slightly. It now states that
the elements are “capable of being conducted” rather
than “are conducted and managed”. It requires
considerations (including contingent consideration),
cach identifiable asset and liability to be measured at
its acquisition-date fair value, except leases and
insurance contracts, reacquired right, indemnification
assets as well as some assets and liabilities required to
be measured in accordance with other HKFRS. They
are income taxes, employee benefits, share-based
payment and non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations. Any non-controlling interest
in an acquiree is measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets. The Group will apply
HKFRS 3 (Revised) from 1 April 2010; and

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

66 i 4 A R A 7

2. EREEBUR ()

2.1 AL HE (7))
(c) 1 A 4 5% J 7K 45 [3] 3lt JE 42 1
IR 2 Rl Je B 77 3 Al 1 15

Al R it FE (4F)

s B B R e 53
WORAERT) S TEHBEA
BF ] Gl R 6% & DF i
W Bk RN
LtH—-HHZEMGEM
A 4 R 9T sk DA
%) o WA &R DL A A
HEAT WA OF B L T R
B A DF ¥ 40 A A e R 4
B > M S E 2 TR
FEAE T » w% 4 Rl 7] fE %
L2 NI S
i o % e R B3R K
JC & [ W 7 17 ] i I
[T OAMEAT BB o 3%
#e B AR (6 Bk
RAREL) ~ & T Tk
R M BRI
Jik H O30 0 A P A G &
MERLE KRG A &
7 W RE R A A
K EAMBIH EFE M
B e e R B R
T % A K A AR R BR AL
BRI
A~ DL B Ay 2y BE B Y
F 3K B i A 8 B B IR
HEEMOKIEER -
B W B 2 D A i e
JBe JB SRCHE 25 3 2 O i Bk
2 % J ¥ Bt JBe SR HE 23 A
B W B 2 R 4 AT T
o@D
AEEGH T -FHE
WU — H e A v
o ok o A B3R (R e
i) s K



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao U 5 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (effective from 1
January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and
aligns segment reporting with the requirements of the
US standard SFAS 131, “Disclosures about segments
of an enterprise and related information”. The new
standard requires a “management approach”, under
which segment information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. The
Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1 April 2009. The
expected impact is still being assessed in detail by
management, but it appears likely that the number of
reportable segments, as well as the manner in which
the segments are reported, will change in a manner
that is consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker.

(d) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet cffective

and not relevant for the Group’s operations

The following interpretations to existing standards have

been published and are mandatory for the Group’s

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2008 or

later periods but are not relevant for the Group’s operations:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective

and not relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

D HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, “Service concession

arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2008);

e HK(FRIC) — Int 13, “Customer loyalty programs”
(effective from 1 July 2008); and

D HKJFRIC) — Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The limit on a
defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements

and their interaction” (effective from 1 January 2008).

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31

March 2008.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one

half of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated

from the date such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference (which would have been known as
negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy) is
recognized directly in the consolidated income statement

(Note 2.8).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary in the consolidated financial statements to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of the
subsidiary and its carrying amount as of the date of
disposal, including any attributable amount of goodwill and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(6)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.9). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net
of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on

acquisition (Note 2.8).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognized in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

70 g 4 A R A A

2. EREEBUR ()

2.2 BREIRH (H)

(@)

(b)

Mt g 47 (4F)

TEARRAFEEAREN R
Fif g 2> W) 2 B TG R AR 0
i kL 4 A B MR (B 5E2.9) o
A 2 7 i O B HE R B 2
Bt A BB A T 2 SR o

it 4 Al

Tk 8 2% ] 48 P A AR 45 19 3
TN A VINTE ST e
S B M 20%E50%1%
TEREZ R RE o W A A A
VARE %5 &1 5k AR - 4056 DA
B AR R o AR AR A W
A Z BB A WO R T R
R (0 AT R 51 S
) (FifEE2.8) o

7% 45 1] JRE A WAL 1% 1B A 8
Z i B oM T AR MRS AR
Pl R o T M Al AL T AR Ao A
B T JUL S o A M T R
B M R AR R R 2 W
S A% S B AR O R o il A
45 T E A — R 8 R 2
15 5% o A A i T A A
F 2 HE AR > LG AT T b J
15 0 M8 Ak > A SR A e
i — 2 > BRIEASR
ORI & 2 ) 7R 4 B AT AR
H Ak o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U 85 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(6)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.9). The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in

providing products or services. A geographical segment is engaged

in providing products or services within a particular economic

environment. Both types of segments are subject to risks and

returns that are different from those of other business/

geographical segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting

system, the Group has determined that business segments be

presented as the primary reporting format and geographical

segments as the secondary reporting format for the purposes of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AaH

V285 i A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based

on similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
financial period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue are based
on the jurisdiction in which the customers are located and total

assets and capital expenditures are where the assets are located.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is

the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U 85 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial

assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii)

all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to sharcholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 i A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable

to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in

the consolidated income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Hotel properties 20 years

— Furniture and fixtures 3 — 5 years
— Office equipment and machinery 3 — 5 years
— Computer and related equipment 3 — 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately to write down an
asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.9). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are netted off or

recognized within ‘other operating expenses’ in the consolidated

income statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U 85 A W k(A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUR ()

2.6 BLEWE

2.6 Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, which is not occupied by the companies in

the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases

and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for
as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for

as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs, except when it is acquired through a
business combination, in which case it is measured initially at fair
value. After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value, representing open market value determined regularly
by external valuers and/or professionally qualified executive of

the Group.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recognized in the

consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.9). Cost represents
consideration and directly attributable transaction costs paid or
payable for the rights to use the land for periods between 30 and
40 years. Amortization of land use rights is calculated on the

straight-line method over the period of the land use rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARaH

V285 i A ik (A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary, associate, or business attributable to the

Group at the effective date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses is
included in intangible assets while goodwill on acquisitions of
Goodwill is

tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less

associates is included in “Interests in associates’.

accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity or
business include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the

entity or business sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates or businesses, is recognized immediately in the

consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and receivable and available-for-sale financial assets. The

classification depends on the purposes for which the financial

assets were acquired. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in

this category are classified as current assets.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried
at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the

consolidated income statement.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement as part of other revenue when the Group’s right

to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(6)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities later than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘trade and other receivables’ and
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet (Notes 2.11
and 2.12). Loans and receivables are carried at amortized

cost using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the Group intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months after the balance sheet date. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs

and subsequently carried at fair value.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement

as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in the consolidated income statement as part of

other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired

or have been transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analyzed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognized in consolidated income statement;
translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognized
in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-

monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognized

in equity.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing

models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as

little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEFIEOR (H)

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 2.10 4 % & 2 (#])
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is 7 45 [ 1% N R AR B REAG BE
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial BEER—HMEEERSHB
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as WRAE 2 % B8 18 o i I A 25 43
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair X ks Wl AR H B B B o AF ) B
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator s A DA R > R A
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for A e 7 R B e AR s L AR o
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured R At B S A B A
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair %> HE G (W B A B 81 9
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously NV EZ R WEZ B EE
recognized in consolidated income statement — is removed from WA TR A S A AR R Z AT
equity and recognized in the consolidated income statement. fHIER) M TERE R 0 bR > W55 &
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated income Wz e o I HE T H N B Uk
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the 15 7% W TR Z VA I 1R AS € 75 AR 4%
consolidated income statement. Impairment testing of trade and AW as R o B 5 S H i R Uk
other receivables is described in Note 2.11. 7K T 2 AL B O 2. 1 1 [ e o

2.11 Trade and other receivables 2.11 & 5 B I fib i Wik JEH

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value B T IR Wk T B B Al JRE R K TE W)
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective Ui 4% 8 P R - JLAR DL BB A
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for BB B B8N B A 0 15 U A 1 A
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when FHE  HARBE B AREH
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to A HE AR 98 JE WK TE =2 JR AT 6 ik IR
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of Il B A 20 390 K I o Bt R R
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, e FL Aty JE Wi ik VEL it R Uk A 93 A o
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial & % N\ B 8Ok B % 8~ R RE
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are EAERFRMEEH AR
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The AT A% 33k 3% 25 B 20 v 4 0 4 2K 3 1R
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s B TRk VE A S o B A
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash % e R T B AR BB R R AN Bl 2
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying A 7 AR AR Bl 4 it i 2 B A [
amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance ZHEM A TEEZIRE AR
account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the 15 1 488 4 1B 1 08 0 s 1R 2 & A R
consolidated income statement within ‘other operating expenses’. A A W 25 2R [ il 4% 428 B 32 | A e
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against i o i B 5 M WAk T 2 IR - Bl
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries Wt B 5 M W T B R o
of amounts previously written off are credited against ‘other i A% B Rl 2 K TE B AR A
operating expenses’ in the consolidated income statement. W [ H AR ZP X | o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incidental costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.14 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in consolidated
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items

recognized directly in equity, in which case they are recognized in

equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUR ()

2.14 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.14 B 391 B 3 %€ Fr 15 Bt (#)

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by

the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A W (A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as

interest expense.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognized as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the

salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated income

statement in the period in which they relate.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as the Scheme. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in consolidated income
statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over

the remaining vesting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A W (A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is

recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial advisory fees are recognized as revenue when the

agreed services have been provided.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Realized gain/loss on trading of securities is recognized as

revenue on a trade date basis.

Unrealized gain/loss on trading securities is recognized when
trading securities are restated to fair value at the reporting

date.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive

payment is established.

2. EREEBUOR ()

2.17 1 B 8 A (#1)

(d)

YRt 75 F 0 2 Fr 1 (A7)
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AT 03 W 488 A\ JBEAR (T i) Je
JBe A ¥ 5 -

2.18 W %2 e 5
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ii)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Leases (as the lessee)

(a)

()

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognized in the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability for each period.

2.20 Insurance contracts

The Company regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect

of loan facilities provided to subsidiaries as insurance contract.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities

under its insurance contracts using current estimates of future

cash flow. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance

liabilities are recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A W (A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUOR ()

221 BRAR AL I ek R & &

2.21 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is

probable, it will then be recognized as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognized.

222 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

(a) Assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those

assets that will be transferred in the transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUR ()

222 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations 2R RHENEZEERCHIL
(Continued) RaEEH(HE)

(a) Assets held for sale (Continued) (a) FAEH B2 & E ()

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognized at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exception to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned is investment
property. This asset, even if held for sale, would continue to

be measured in accordance with the policies set out in Note

2.6.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognized in the consolidated income statement. As long as
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A W (A

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EREEBUOR ()

22 F N EZEE KK IL
SR ()
(b) EHRIFEEEH

222 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (a) above), if earlier. It also

occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated income

statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

O % Il A SR A R I 3K
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—  the post-tax gain or loss recognized on the - ERE A R
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the A E > B H B R R T
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting RIS 2B AR

the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit risk,

liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall

risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), United States dollars
(“US dollars”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its
investments which are located in the PRC.
Considering that the exchange rate between HK
dollars and US dollars is pegged, and that Renminbi is
appreciating, the Group believes its downside foreign
exchange risk is minimal. The Group does not use any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign

exchange risk.

As at 31 March 2008, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against HK dollars, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year and
shareholders’ funds would have been HK$3,391,000
and HK$65,134,000 (period ended 31 March 2007:
HK$10,069,000 and HK$31,060,000) higher/lower

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 0 5 A W (A

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3. B A e A B (4
3.1 B 5 B PR R (A

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) 17 530 (A)

(ii)  Price risk

(if) fELA% R Bt

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk HY A A 4R T 3 A % B L
because the Group’s result is affected by the B #e4 FH R A A2
fluctuation in the market price of investments held by i 18 25 5 R 2 B S
the Group which are classified as financial assets at fair Z & Z T B s A
value through profit or loss. 2 NN S
JBe il 8 2 (LA B o
If these investments had increased/decreased by 10% i % %5 % B H R fE

with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and sharcholders’ funds would have been
HK$2,175,000 (period ended 31 March 2007:
HK$1,650,000) higher/lower.

(b)  Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, investments and bank deposits. The

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing

10% > T BT A7 H: Al 5 8%
PRFE S 5 5 AR BE BR B
1% i A K% B OR & 4
WA 2,175,000
L (REZEREF LE=
H=EZ"+—HI1:EH R :
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(b) 15 E AT
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basis. AR ER o e

In respect of trade and other receivables, these receivables O 5 M H b HE e gk T i
represent rental income receivable from the guests of the T o % 5 ME Wk JE 8 HE Yook
Group’s assets held for sale. The Group receives security AREHEFEHEEEZR
deposits in advance, which are equivalent to one month’s OB 4 WA o A 4E E TH OB

rental charge and can be used to offset any unpaid rental

receivables.

In respect of investments and bank deposits, the Group has
diversified its exposures into different financial institutions.
It has policies in place to assess the credit standing of the
counterparties and financial institutions before the Group

invests its assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains liquidity by obtaining funding from
the holding company and bank facilities. Prudent liquidity
risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, and the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability

under committed credit lines.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 23) on the basis of expected cash

flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the

impact of discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. A% )® B4 P (48)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B4 %R B R & (4)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mHE b5 (H)
Less than Between 1 and
1 year 5 years
—4E N —E A
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#HT F¥#oo
Group 74
At 31 March 2008 R_FFENFE=ZH=1—H
Borrowings it 5% 484,583 475,360
Trade and other payables B 5 T Fo A A ek JEH 76,847 =
At 31 March 2007 RN _ZFELE=ZHA=1+—H
Borrowings it 5% 132,896 97,086
Trade and other payables B 5 Ko A ) ik DE 409,881 =
Company AR
At 31 March 2008 R-EFENFE=ZH=1—H
Borrowings i3 187,779 =
Trade and other payables & 5 T FC A A ik JE 2,913 =
At 31 March 2007 RoEZFLE=A=1+—H
Borrowings fi 3K 129,896 86
Trade and other payables B 5 T F A A 2k VB 2,058 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 25 i A W (A

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. % )m B4 P (48)
3.1 W LB P &R (4
(d) B id R A F {6 F) 5 Im g

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits,
other investment activities and long-term borrowings. The
Group monitors and limits its interest rate risk exposure
through management of maturity profile, currency mix and

choice of fixed and floating interest rates.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s interest-rate risk arises from its borrowings.
Borrowings bearing interest at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings bearing
interest at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group manages its interest rate
exposure of borrowings with a focus on reducing the overall
cost of debt. During the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
period ended 31 March 2007, the Group’s borrowings at
variable rate were denominated in HK dollars, US dollars

and Renminbi.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, if interest rates on the
Group’s borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year and shareholders’ funds would have been
HK$1,475,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007:
HK$532,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/

lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. A% )® B 45 P (48)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economics conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The

gearing ratios at 31 March 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

3.2 WA JE kg A BE

A4 A B AR 2 ARy R R
8 A B8 7 1 A A Jie AR 43 [0 ¥
Be LR AR 2 RR 2 R R - K
A5 T S SO A e A B S A
VI e DR B 5 £ Y A A o M FE
A % 75 e SR 11 e (T e o
AR ) SRR 2 B AR DA AR Yy
A 2 Je PR W 2 [ B4 °F > SiE N BB

AR AR AR A L R e
Ao R RENER BRLE
EA=ET—HZXEARAFLEN
T

2008 2007

ZEFF)NE —_FELE

HK$’000 HK$000

T 0

Total borrowings (Note 26) A8 5k A (PR3 26) 959,943 229,982
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) W R RBRASZEEY (FEk23) (29,526) (20,970)
Net debt B A 930,417 209,012
Total equity R 25 A %8 356,576 299,401
Total capital Y 4> 1,286,993 508,413
Net debt/total capital ratio BHFHELSLR 72.3% 41.1%
Net debt/total equity ratio BB A REZS MR LR 260.9% 69.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AiaH
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year resulted
primarily from the drawdown of bank loan by a wholly-owned
subsidiary to finance its acquisition of an investment property
(Notes 16 and 26). Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
Group has disposed of its investment properties (Note 24) and
90% interest in its subsidiaries (Note 34). The proceeds from
these disposals will be used to repay bank loans and other current
liabilities, which would have a positive impact on the gearing

ratio.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market prices used for quoted investments held by the

Group are the closing bid prices.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables and current borrowings are
assumed to approximate their carrying amount due to the short-

term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using the

expected future payments discounted at market interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note 2

above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated

financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

(a)

(b)

Classification as investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether the newly acquired hotel
properties qualify as investment properties. In making its
judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independent of the other assets held by an
entity and the level of ancillary services provided to the tenants.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in
the production or supply process. Taking into consideration of all
the factors, the Group considers the newly acquired hotel

properties to be owner-occupied properties.

Estimate of fair value of investment property

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar property, lease and other contracts. The Group
has in-house professionally qualified executive and/or engages
external independent professional valuers to carry out valuation
annually on an open market for existing use basis, and adopts
such valuation as the fair value of investment property. In making
the judgment, consideration is given to assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date and appropriate capitalization rates. These estimates are
regularly compared to the actual market data and actual

transactions available.

4. MK & G Al a MR B

A VB B sk 2 B ke 7 5t IBOSR 2 a AR o
A5 TR B AR A B B R B B
T R RSB Z 0T A B o H R
3R AR B B4R B 2 e R
B R Y KR B 2 3 e B A B 2
AR Z TR B B B AR AR H
7 B W A Wl S e 2 At TR R A
B T 3k o

(a)

(b)

FEBBZEWMERLEEA
ik7E S

SR T B AT R AR A W R
MERBHEREWEREK - 1
A H L B > A 4R I 5 R
S B4 U B S TR AR KRR
S — R TR 2 oAt
A > DA et AP 4R 43 I 42 R B
ZEE - EETARYEELERE
B R B A S B O B A
ol P M A T BT O P 2 At ¥
A o %8 Bt A B E > A%
MR AR W EEREE
HH3E -

& P 3k 4 FE A 6

O AR 2 B 4R A 2
FHL A9 B oAt & 20 7235 B T 4 9 2
AR o AR A NS
BARATBON B RS0 A
o7 B3 A B B 4 BUA 08 Bk e 4
A F Al 4 B W S A B > 3R 4R
A% S A B 2 L o o FEAR
A B A B IR o O B AR R
A A EAR HOE R UL R B
0 AL AR o % S A R 2
ST BT 5 R T R AR
Sy HE g
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. R EGFEHEFEF A B (4)
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (c) Pk - BEA% B sk fhi 2 vl fill
FI 411
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation A 4 7w o 2 - BEA Mk
rates for its property, plant and equipment. The Group will revise Z At wE AT AR R R T R e i
the depreciation rates where useful lives are different to previous A AR B B A B B2
estimation, or it will write off or write down the value of those 7 45 [ 48 OE BT 8 R > B i
assets which are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that & s WO AR 5 1l5 B 2 i 2 R
have been abandoned or sold. 5 Al el th 8 2 Ik SR b o 2
fELfE -
(d) Income taxes (d) PifsBe
It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for unused R B8 A 4R [ SR - B AR AL ELR )
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that MABEEENS » MARENA
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused AR 0 HARR W AR R A
tax losses can be utilized, based on all available evidence. R R A i A DA K 85 R B P A IE
Recognition primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of 8 > I3 % % i 18 e e AR AT Bl I
future taxable profit that will be available against which tax losses BE ZEWREERBEEAE
can be utilized. T H A& & E A WK 8 B IE s 4R

Z HE R Bt ) o

(e) Impairment of assets (e) ¥& 2 A
The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or assets that A AR 3 R R A AR 2
have indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other FRkEERDBEBEA K
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in DL 2 5m R A L BLAE ] YA o 27
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset Al 7 Y B A e R AR
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an W] e ] 4 B 2 S B LA )
asset or a cash-generating unit has been determined based on R 75 #E 47 Wl 35 4% o — JH 3 7 Bk
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of B 4 Ak B A 22 WU Il 4 G
estimates, such as discount rates, future profitability and growth A G AT E - bkt
rates. RESZEBORA AL - B
HRBA e KR E -

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND 5. BIEW - H bk as K&
SEGMENT INFORMATION <@ 2
The Group is principally engaged in property investment and AEE LR R ERE  BHEA
securities trading and investment. Following the disposal of VXLFSL R BE o NN H A s R AR
during the year, the Group’s financial services operation was AREEZEMMBREEBECRIL -
discontinued. Turnover and other revenue of the continuing operations REN MANERZHEAREEEZ
recognized during the year/period are as follows: S Y ERINE R I
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Turnover BB
Rental and other fee income FH 4x e Ho At E A 10,222 9,990
Fair value gain from listed investments B8 s 2 A FEE A 9,878 1,995
20,100 11,985
Other revenue oAl e £
Deposit forfeited in relation to KuERHBE LT ELRRE
uncompleted sale of certain MRz %4
listed investments 9,207 -
Dividend income from listed investments L5 E2Z K BEIA 269 -
Sundry income HAm U A 36 —
9,512 =
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND 5. B Kb K& ER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details of

the business segments are as follows:

a) the property investment segment is engaged in operation of the

investment properties and hotel investment;

b)  the securities trading and investment segment is engaged in
securities trading and investment and other investment holding.
The revenue of this segment mainly comprises net income from

investment and trading securities;

c) the financial services segment is engaged in the provision of
corporate finance and advisory services and operational and
financial leasing of assets, which was discontinued during the

year; and

d)  the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those
specified in (a) to (c) above and includes that of the corporate

office.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and
equipment (Note 15) and investment properties (Note 16). Segment
assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, land use rights, goodwill, investments and receivables.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated assets
and liabilities mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the
corporate office, which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to
any segment. They include items such as deferred taxation and

corporate borrowings.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
100 0 4 il A7 R 24 )

&R ()

B3 A B i

RS 2 B T AR 2
L B4R 5 B 1 43 D S5 R o
RS T 2 3 08 A 1 e O SR
S LA » T 7R 5% L e B O 79 1
A7 30 A 3 B 23 6 o s ) T 2 o
i e

a) YRERBESHRBFZEDRZE
T L 0 B 5

by WHEHAKBRESHRFBHE
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Wzl EEARKRE KERE
BN T

) Al A3 B A S ek
A MR B > DA K B ¥R R I
HME > %o i REN ALK

5 R

d)  ARAELIE B 4 &P 4 b () % (o) H
Bt #le DA Ab 2 2675 > 4 55 A 45 1 ¢
HIFEER -

BAP X MR E Y - WA RS
(B sE1S) DL B 4R 3 (Mt k16) o 4330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment results, major non-cash items and capital expenditures
based on business segments for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 are as follows:

A 3 0 5 A W (A

O I A g B A
¥R (#)

BEZFZNF=A=Z+—HILGFE
LBE_RZZLE=ZA=Z+—HI
THAAA o IRIEH o B 5 W SR AR
ERIEBBIHE REARFZEIIWT

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RS E R IR
Securities
Property  trading and Financial
investment investment  Unallocated Subtotal services  Elimination Group
[
WERE  HER%E  A2RER it SR B REH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T THI T
For the year ended 31 REZZZNEZN
March 2008 SR
Segment revenue: s
Sales to external customers MR F e 10,222 9,878 - 20,100 3,876 = 23,976
Inter-segment revenue ey - - - - 317 (317) -
Total segment revenue i e 10,222 9,878 - 20,100 4,193 (317) 23,976
Segment results YRS 108,137 19,341 127,478 462 127,940
Unallocated operating income i ON
and expenses, net lipes (38,759) - (38,759)
Finance income HHEWA 288 = 288
Finance costs g A (58,429) - (58,429)
Profit on disposal of discontinued i B4 F 48/ 5
operations il - 2,189 2,189
Share of (losses)/profits TEA I A
of associates (/) /%A (14) 1,230 1,216
Profit before taxation il 30,568 3,881 34,449
Taxation charge B (26,341) (44) (26,885)
Profit attributable to shareholders iR REAG YA 3,727 3,837 7,564
Other segment information ~ HAH &M
Fair value gain on investment BEMEN LR
properties (Note 16) FF (Wrik16) 143,251 = = 143,251 - 143,251
Depreciation and amortization i Ry 1,799 - 3,044 5,043 22 5,065
Provision for impairment of VERY YT ]
property, plant and equipment WA 5,775 = = 5775 = 5775
Capital expenditures 2N 5 213,668 - 1,276 214,944 - 214,944
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VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
L 5 A R 24 )

5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND 5. BEE -~ H b Wik & al
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HR(4)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RS E R DRI BBER
Securities
Property  trading and Financial
investment investment  Unallocated Subtotal services  Elimination Group
[
WERE  HERKE  AAREH Ihik SR B REH
HKS§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THT T T
For the fifteen months BRE-ZZLE=N
ended 31 March 2007 Zt—HiEFHRA
Segment revenue: g
Sales to external customers Wik Aot 9,990 1,995 - 11,985 21,954 - 33,939
Inter-segment revenue ey = = = = 824 (824) =
Total segment revenue V5Ll G 9,990 1,995 - 11,985 20,778 (824) 33,939
Segment results MEE 99,422 1,940 101,362 9,121 110,483
Unallocated operating income RABEERA
and expenses, net Yy | (45,079) = (45,078)
Finance income HEIRA 2,502 536 (109) 2,929
Finance costs A A (16,144) (201) 109 (16,236)
Profit on disposal of B
discontinued operations il = 715 715
Share of losses of associates NG e (74) (402) (476)
Profit before taxation TRy | 42,568 9,769 52,337
Taxation credit AL 11,207 = 11,207
Profit attributable to shareholders B HHEAG %A 53,775 9,769 63,544
Other segment information ~ J i/ #F % B
Excess of fair value of net iR &2 AT
assets acquired over costs of (B A
acquisition bd ¢ 91,536 - - 91,536 - 91,536
Fair value gain on investment BEMENTH
properties (Note 16) B (k1) 8,719 - - 8,719 - 8,719
Depreciation and amortization W e 246 = 2,860 3,106 320 3,426
Capital expenditures BARRF 729,028 = 3,436 732,464 718 733,182



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND 5. BEH - H b s K g
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) &R (%)
The segment assets and liabilities based on business segments as at 31 RE-FEZNE=H=+—HE X
March 2008 and 31 March 2007 are as follows: CHEEA=1—H  WEBPHZ L
8 A R BARASII T
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HERBRY DA LR EEH
Securities
Property  trading and Financial
investment investment  Unallocated Subtotal services Group
[:573
WERE  HEARE  AHEEH it E4.1 3 AEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T#x THT THT TH#T THT

At 31 March 2008 REZZZNEZH=1—H
Segment assets g 1,421,125 21,754 8,327 1,451,206 - 1,451,206
Interests in associates T A vl RS 225 - 225
Bank balances and cash BEERLEE 29,526 = 29,526
Total assets B A 1,480,957 = 1,480,957
Segment liabilities e E 70,368 - 6,940 77,308 - 77,308
Bank and other loans AT R A Bk 500,315 = 271,474 771,789 = 771,789
Amount due to ultimate TEAS B et it
holding company NG ¢ 187,693 = 187,093
Deferred tax liabilities BEREARE 87,591 - 87,591
Total liabilities HRA 1,124,381 - 1,124,381
At 31 March 2007 REBFLE=ZA=1—H
Segment assets N 912,941 16,557 8,298 937,796 1,196 938,992
Interests in associates s AL 239 34,770 35,009
Bank balances and cash BEERLEE 11,183 9,787 20,970
Total assets B A 949,218 45,753 994,971
Segment liabilities e E 405,306 - 4,554 409,860 452 410,312
Bank loans AT B 100,000 - - 100,000 - 100,000
Amount due to ultimate TEAS B et it
holding company UNGE ¢ 129,551 - 129,551
Deferred tax liabilities BEREARE 55,707 - 55,707
Total liabilities FURAH 695,118 45 695,570
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group’s business segments operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The segment revenue and capital expenditures based on geographical

segments for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the fifteen months

ended 31 March 2007 are as follows:

1/4/2007 to 31/3/2008
1/4/2007%31/3/2008

CEX R &V Tig
&R ()

OZ e Ty 3N — [ 4y R

A 3 2 S5 98 B T o A
BoRESFEAFSAST AL
FRERRE-EFLEZAZT M
TR > B 4 2 28 T W 2
B AR S AT

1/1/2006 to 31/3/2007
1/1/2006%31/3/2007

Continuing Discontinued

Continuing Discontinued

operations  operations Elimination Group  operations  operations  Elimination Group
DL HH DAL
HEXHE  HRRE HE O ARE AEEXE  EEEE e A%HE
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
T#n  T#x  TEx  TEx TEx THx THx T#x
Revenue Wi

Hong Kong i 20,066 4,193 (317) 23,942 11,985 22,778 (824) 33,939
PRC i 34 - - 34 - - - -
20,100 4,193 (317) 23,976 11,985 22,778 (824) 33,939

Capital expenditures B[
Hong Kong i3 1,014 = = 1,014 2,933 30 = 2,963
PRC il 213,930 - - 213,930 729,531 688 = 730,219
214,944 - - 214,944 732,464 718 = 733,182

Revenue is categorized based on the jurisdiction in which the

customers are located, while capital expenditures are classified based

on where the assets are located.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND 5. BIEW - H b aE K&
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) &R (%)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments W el 75 X — 4y 3B (%)
(Continued)
The segment assets based on geographical segments as at 31 March N _EENER _FEELFE=H
2008 and 2007 are analyzed as follows: Z—H o H 4 2 4 E R
B
2008 2007
ZEREN\E —_FFLE
Continuing Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operations Group operations operations Group
Fi i DAL Ei A& IE
REXEH REXEH A M Fit-E 3 Fit-€ 323 N
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T T T Tt TF¥#IT T
Total assets A
Hong Kong PLRiS 222,220 - 222,220 190,684 10,983 201,667
PRC H [ 1,258,737 - 1,258,737 758,534 34,770 793,304
1,480,957 - 1,480,957 949,218 45,753 994,971

Total assets are categorized based on where the assets are located.

BB R AP AR AT A o
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6. STAFF COSTS 6. f& B WA
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TXWELHEREE (BFEEBEEF
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)). 4) 2 18 B B ( Ff5E14(a)) ¢
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/20062
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$000
T T#T
Directors’ fees HEHEM A 762 875
Salaries and other short-term 3997 T 5 A . 91
employee benefits 2B Al 16,770 17,414
Unutilized annual leave AR HZ E1R 7 16
Employee share option benefits 1 B Jik I A A A 4,230 =
Pension costs — defined RR 4 A — € B
contribution plans (Note) Bk ET ) (B 5E) 640 361
22,409 18,666
Note: There were no forfeited contributions during the year/period ended 31 Mk : RE_FBZNER _FFELEZN
March 2008 and 2007. Contributions totaling HK$407,000 = H k4R R I N
(2007:HK$544,000) were payable as at 31 March 2008. ZHGR R ZREFNE=ZH =4

H > BT 453k 88 8 4% 407,000 % 78 (=
FE U 1 544,000878) °

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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7. OPERATING PROFIT 7. A% A
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/20062
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$000
T THIT
Operating profit is arrived at after F A28 s B R
charging/(crediting): kg (BEA) ¢
Legal and professional fee VY S 7,404 3,084
Consultancy fee JE 2 14,379 7,726
Rental income from investment properties HEMEMESWA (10,188) (9,986)
Direct outgoings for investment properties EiacCyE IR B 3,095 5,651
Depreciation and amortization PrEE S B 5,043 3,106
Provision for impairment of property, Wik ~ A Bk s
plant and equipment T AE A 5,775 =
Loss on disposal of property, B B ~ AR
plant and equipment 2GR 114 12
Auditors’ remuneration 7% B i )
— audit —®H 920 605
— non-audit — % 574 961
Net exchange (gain)/loss M 5E (M 28) s 1 AR (1,017) 178
Operating leases — land and buildings BT — LR 6,781 7,083
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VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
108 s 4 il 7 PR 24 )

8. FINANCE INCOME 8. MEWA
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest income from B AR H
— bank deposits — BT ER 285 2,311
— trading investments - HREHE 3 82
Interest income charged to B WA B4 IR R
discontinued operations EV SR - 109
288 2,502
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. B RA
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest on bank loan wholly repayable To4E N B B R 2 SR AT
within five years Bk 2 M B 5,293 2,874
Interest on bank loan not wholly TR R B R 2 SR AT
repayable wtihin five years Bk 2 A B 19,520 5,080
Interest on finance leases & LS R B 35 58
Other interest expenses on amounts FiAf N R Z R Z
wholly repayable within five years HAth ) B 57 H 33,577 8,132
58,425 16,144




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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10. TAXATION 10. B JB

Hong Kong profits tax is assessed at the statutory rate of 17.5%
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2007: 17.5%) on the assessable profit
for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the consolidated income
statement represents:

A 8 I 15 Bl ) AR 98 A P9 R B e A 4%
17.5% (RE-FFELFE=A=1+—H
I +HAEA 2 17.5%) Z 2 BRI -
T A1 P45 B O AR ¢ A 45 18 A8 o )i W
R L 3 RO A R AR P9 R R

o i A it 55 o

BalmENCmEGEA) ZBE

Jids ¢

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to

31/3/2008 31/3/2007

1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%

31/3/2008 31/3/2007

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T

Deferred tax (Note 27) EAERLIE (Fft5E27) 26,841 (11,207)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

A 5 1] I3 A iy ¥ ) < 3 I SR 9 i
fok B oy W] SR A 2 I ST 3 B R T w5

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: Z MR B Z ZE R
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt 0
Profit before taxation [ iy ez A 30,568 42,568
Share of losses of associates FEAL Bk 28 Rl e R 14 74
Profit before taxation — Company WAt A ¥ A1) — AR A =] K
and subsidiaries Bt} e 2 vl 30,582 42,642
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates F4 558 R S 4% ) 0 W [ e A =2
applicable to profits in B A EH
the respective jurisdictions Z B 11,710 21,451
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN AT HIBR BH X 2 BLIE R 2 326 -
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue S 8 A =2 B T 5 28 (549) (30,502)
Tax effect on temporary differences AT AT R 2R Z
not recognized i T g 2 409 294
Deferred tax assets on tax losses not R RBIE IR Z
recognized WE R TE A 14,945 10,862
Change in PRC income tax rate e [58] Jify 75 50 23 A Bl - (13,312)
Tax charge/(credit) BIEZH . (K%) 26,841 (11,207)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11.OR IR B EH

On 18 May 2007, the Company entered into a conditional agreement
to sell the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, VXLFSL, to a
third party, for a consideration of HK$11 million. Following the
completion of the disposal on 1 August 2007, the Group discontinues
its financial services operation, and focuses on property investments

and securities investment.

On 23 August 2007, VXL Investments Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement to
dispose of 45% of its equity interest and shareholder’s loan in Million
Sky Investments Limited (“MSIL”) to a third party for a total
consideration of RMB34,785,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,931,000).

An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued operations

is as follows:

WZFRLERHA+I\H » ARA A
S — JE A R A 1 AR 11,000,000
v 0 B W 2 R e A 2 il A
CBITBART —HE=ZT - ZHEE
WFELHENH—HBEE > A&
M Ee&IE AR ER > BELS
YR E Ris BT -

W oZZEENH Z+=H > KA
Z & MR A R e R R A R
28 W) FT oL — JE Hh ek o B LR R
BERMRAF ([HRBE]) Z45%/5 A
WER R ERBER T —BE=Tr - 4
RAE % N R ¥534,785,00000 (£ AH & it
35,931,0004JC) ©

DAILEERFEZEARBCHRES
HrnF

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 & 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Turnover % 2 4,193 22,778
Staff costs 1@ B B (1,849) (6,122)
Other operating expenses Al 28 #28 BH =2 (1,882) (7,535)
Operating profit Jt= gty | 462 9,121
Finance income BB WA - 536
Finance costs Rl B AR = (201)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates WEAL Bk AR ws A (s 18) 1,230 (402)
Profit before taxation [ ¢ B 5 1,692 9,054
Taxation BiIE (44) -
Profit of discontinued operations A& IR 282 S A 1,648 9,054
Profit on disposal of discontinued HE KIS ER
operations 2 Y Al 2,189 715
Profit from discontinued operations CL A 1L AR SR 2 Y ) 3,837 9,769

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of HK$23,706,000
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2007: loss of HK$31,725,000).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
ORDINARY SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FOR
THE YEAR/PERIOD

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the sharcholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

12.

13.

Jie S I 41 ¥z

AARAFMBERENBHLZKE _F
FNE=ZHA=1—HIEEZ B R
A% & F1 % 16 1823,706,0008 6 (R 2 —
FELFE=ZHA=Z=+—HIL+HMA :
JE1H31,725,0009 J0) °

A2 w] B R AE N WA
i B Ji 3 28 e 2k A I il
i Al

(a) BT I R R AR T AR SR AR
S AR 2y W) 22 T Al i A B A
AT i Z B 3 a4 -

year/period.
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007% 1/1/20062
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Profit attributable to the shareholders — ZAS/Z\ 7] B 3 HEAL i Al
of the Company
— from continuing operations, - REREREEY
HK$°000 T 3,727 53,775
— from discontinued operations, - RECHRILRE R
HK$°000 TH#T 3,837 9,769

Weighted average number of ordinary L3475 B2

shares in issue JIRE S 3535
Basic earnings per share 5 IR I A 28 )
— from continuing operations - R H R R T
— from discontinued operations —RE OISR

1,528,906,637 1,466,303,300

HK cents HK cents
A WAl
0.24 3.67
0.25 0.66
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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13. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
ORDINARY SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FOR
THE YEAR/PERIOD (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per ordinary share is calculated based on the (b) 5 B 5 4 e 4 9 v A TGl v AR AT
5 S Bt HEE R 2R Y A M Y BAR
R 45 © B AT I 9 it R T 35 8

13. 7% 2 v JB 3R 4R T e
Al 5 B 5 3 B Bk A B B v
i A (%)

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue after

adjusting for the potential dilutive effect in respect of

outstanding share options.

w5

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 & 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
Profit attributable to the 2 5] 5 A RE AN Vi )
shareholders of the Company
— from continuing operations, - REREREE
HK$’000 R 3,727 53,775
— from discontinued operations, - KA DI
HK$’000 R 3,837 9,769
Adjusted weighted average number CL 84735 3 I 2 A8 A%
of ordinary shares in issue JIRE-F- 35 85 1,553,411,555 1,466,303,300
HK cents HK cents
3] WAl
Diluted earnings per share 1 B 4 4 2 R
— from continuing operations _ REIFEREER 0.24 3.67
— from discontinued operations - R OIS 0.25 0.66

WFERLHENHLH » RN 8RB
T {60.20% 70 2 5 8 R C 97 Al 4 — 1
JE A BB T 4E0.01 95 It 2 35 0 A (B R
28) o Pb g 87 O 1 Y B DL R e
1y 97 A 2 5 2 o

On 7 August 2007, every ordinary share of HK$0.20 each of the
Company was subdivided into twenty ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each (Note 28). The comparative figures have been

adjusted to reflect the effect of share subdivision.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the

year ended 31 March 2008 were as follows:

14. % 35 M v A 48 B T <

(a) HEHME

O REMNENEFREFF
NEZA=+—HILFEREBHZ
BT

Employee Employer’s

share contribution

Discretionary Other option to pension
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses benefits**  benefits scheme Total
{753
R HEkE
HRA we e WA HmAe RERA SR ik
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
T#e  FEc TEc TExc TEx T TEx
Datuk LIM Chee Wah FEMIE - - - - 599 - 599
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO 1t ik A - 3,116 2,250 634 599 12 6,611
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi Bt L = 1,034 85 - 599 12 1,730
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. B AT AL 200 = = = = - 200
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fe, ].. ZEREL AT AL 300 - - - - = 300
Mr. David YU Hon To (ii) AV 6k i) 183 = = = = = 183
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing (i) Ax4:82A4: iif) 79 - - - - - 79
762 4,150 2,335 634 1,797 24 9,702
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. % 3 K B B E M &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFHME ()
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the EMNREMSMNERRE TR
fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 were as follows: LtHE=HA=+—HIL+HMH=Z
W4 T
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other to pension
Name of Director Fees  Salaries bonuses  benefits ** scheme Total
7ES
R i
R4 s Hidx MREAL  BCfbmaA = FHEIE sk

HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HKS$000  HK$000
Ti#n T T#x  T#x Ti#n  T#x

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) SERBEE®) - - - - - -
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO i ik it : - 3,101 250 649 15 4,015
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi Bt xd: - 1,255 85 - 15 1,355
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P SRR AT AL 250 = = = = 250
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].2 ZRRALAT A 375 - - - - 375
Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor (iv) ~ E#W e (iv) = 2,148 700 = 14 2,862
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing (iii) REEIE (iif) 250 - - - - 250
875 6,504 1,035 649 44 9,107
** Other benefits include housing allowance. o HAlRE R LA B R A o
(i) An Executive Director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived his () — BT E S R B
emolument for the period ended 31 March 2007. HBRE_ZRFLE=ZH=1—
I Ik 2 4 4 o
(ii)  Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2008. (i) RBEE-ZFZFNE=ZHA=1-—
H k4 EHERAE -
(iii) Resigned during the year ended 31 March 2008. (i) REE-FZNE=H=1+—
H 1k 48 PERHT: o
(iv) Resigned during the period ended 31 March 2007. (ivv REE_RZLE=HA=1—
H 1k 3] [ AT

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid to any Directors as an inducement to
y
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year/period ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year comprise of 2 Directors and 3 employees
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2007: 3 Directors and 2
employees). The details of the emoluments payable to the 3
employees (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007: 2 employees)

during the year are presented below.

(a)

(b)

3 (4])

RE-RENERFELES
IESRIN Y V2 I RE I
90 0 73520654 T
(Y TTET VTS ETITN
A S5 2 5 D 1 T
18 o

EES 38 P N=n

A 3] [ A 45 I T B R 2
ANLBFEmAEER=F4RE
(BE_ZZFEHE=A=1+—H
b+ HARA =4 EE R AR
B) - SFRNmMZ=4RE (K2
ZELE=ZA=ZF+—HIL T HH
H : W4 0R B ) AT &5 251
LU

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T T

Salaries and other short-term i 4 N Ho At 45 1
employee benefits 1@ B 15 A 3,086 2,849
Employee share option benefits A8 5 i Jie A ) 415 -

Pension costs — defined IBR S AR —

contribution plan R AT 28 30
3,529 2,879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MHEBFELEGHEHEHNS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) .4 5w B A+ (8

Number of individuals

N

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to

31/3/2008 31/3/2007

1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006E

31/3/2008 31/3/2007

Emoluments band 3t T o

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 #57T - 1,000,000%5 70 1 -

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001# 7% - 1,500,000 7C 2 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #57T - 2,000,000%5 70 - 1

3 2
No emoluments were paid to any of the five highest paid BRE_FZNERX_FFLFE=ZA
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group =+ — H kAR W H AR A i
or as compensation for loss of office during the year/period RGN R O (e
ended 31 March 2008 and 2007. 02 45 i A A 4 i A 4R T g

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao U 5 A Wk (A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 3 ~ s Bkt

(a) The Group (a) ASHEH
Office Computer
equipment and
Hotel Furniture and related Motor
properties  and fixtures ~ machinery  equipment  vehicles Total
iR HAE B K
e KE  RMRES B f ki
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
Ti#x T T T#r  T#x T
Cost A
At 1 April 2007 REZZLERA—HA - 5,945 289 1,188 2,462 9,884
Additions WE 125,781 6,113 6,611 132 1,522 140,159
Disposals JRE - (99) (45) (259) (819) (1,222)
Reclassified as non-current R B AREHELZ
assets held for sale (Note 24)  FEWRBIE 7 (Hifat24) = (578) - - - (578)
Exchange difference HE St 2 6,967 36 374 2 78 7,481
At 31 March 2008 REBRNE=H=1—H 132,748 11,417 7,229 1,087 3,243 155,724
Accumulated At
depreciation
At 1 April 2007 WoBBLENA—H - 2,805 99 612 818 4334
Charge for the year R 1,074 2,676 294 232 597 4,873
Disposals JEE - (79) (32) (211) (369) (691)
Provision for impairment AR = 5,752 - - 23 5775
Reclassified as non-current EHAERARENEZ
assets held for sale (Note 24)  FEFBIE e (Fifat24) = (496) = = = (496)
Exchange difference ERER 60 11 14 3 16 104
At 31 March 2008 REZFNEZAZF—H 1,134 10,669 375 636 1,085 13,899
Net book value P i ¥
Ac 31 March 2008 RZZZNE=ZA=1—H 131,614 748 6,854 451 2158 141,825
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 93 ~ By B ak s (4)
(Continued)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) AHEM (%)

Office Computer

equipment and
Hotel Furniture and related Motor
properties  and fixtures ~ machinery  equipment  vehicles Total
(3191 Ha% £ )
IR7ES KB ORWRES  HBSG it g

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS$000
T T T TH#x  T#x  TEx

Cost A

At 1 January 2006 REZZAE—H—H - 3,082 110 739 2,302 6,233
Additions e = 3,356 212 631 144 4,343
Disposals JEE - (507) (36) (193) = (736)
Exchange difference B L2 - 14 3 11 16 44
At 31 March 2007 REZREEZHZ1—H = 5,945 289 1,188 2,462 9,884

Accumulated depreciation Rt #

At 1 January 2006 REZRAE—H—H = 560 30 303 235 1,128
Charge for the period LB - 2,416 75 353 582 3,426
Disposals JEE - (174) (6) (45) - (225)
Exchange difference B S 2 = 3 = 1 1 5
At 31 March 2007 REZZLE=ZH=1—H = 2,805 99 612 818 4334
Net book value M A

At 31 March 2007 REZZLEZH=1—H - 3,140 190 576 1,644 5,550

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(0

15. Y03 ~ Bk o Rt i (48

(b) The Company (b) A%
Computer
Furniture Office  and related Motor
and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
WAE B &
VeSS i HI 3% ff HH A
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
SRCoH SR T Tibx T
Cost A
At 1 April 2007 REFRLENA—H 5,063 94 496 1,161 6,814
Disposals JR 1 - (6) - )
At 31 March 2008 REZFNE=ZA=+—H 5,062 94 490 1,161 6,807
Accumulated depreciation 2aiE
Ac 1 April 2007 REBELENA—H 2,384 44 336 426 3,190
Charge for the year AN B 2,318 29 118 232 2,697
Disposals JEE (1) = (5) = (6)
At 31 March 2008 RZBRNEZA=+—H 4,701 73 449 658 5,881
Net book value e i
At 31 March 2008 REFZNFZA=Z1—H 361 21 41 503 926
Cost A
At 1 January 2006 RERBRANE—H—H 2,392 56 424 1,616 4,488
Additions HE 2,671 38 72 = 2,781
Disposals to a group company HEF—HERAT - - - (455) (455)
At 31 March 2007 REBRLEZA=1—H 5,063 94 496 1,161 6,814
Accumulated depreciation 2otingE
At 1 January 2006 REREANEA—H 475 12 140 211 838
Charge for the period LN 1,909 32 196 298 2,435
Disposals to a group company HEF—HERAT = = = (83) (83)
At 31 March 2007 R-ZBFLE=ZH=+—H 2,384 44 336 426 3,190
Net book value i AT ¥ 0
At 31 March 2007 R_FELE=ZH=+—H 2,679 50 160 735 3,624
The net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases of (c) REERARAAFGMRBHMEMNE
the Group and the Company were HK$888,000 and B F5 B 2 ¥R CHHR T E A A

HK$503,000 respectively (2007: HK$735,000 and HK$735,000
respectively). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

888,000% 7T % 503,000% JC (&
L 450 5735,000% 76 K
735,000% JG) ° % 55 Fl B WE % 7
HEARME -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. & Y1 3¢

Group

A
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
Filo R
At 1 April/1 January BWHA—H,/ "—H—H 891,561 143,000
Acquisition of business W S 75 - 397,826
Additions wE 39,175 331,013
Fair value gain N =R 143,251 8,719
Exchange difference [ 5t 25 82,150 11,003

Reclassified as non-current assets BB AT EREZ

held for sale (Note 24) JE B & 2 (M 5E24) (160,918) -
At 31 March R=A=1+—H 995,219 891,561

A 45 ] 4% ) 3 2 M 2 e IR T R

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book value

are analyzed as follows:

AT

2008 2007
SERAE CERLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
In Hong Kong, held on: WA > U FEMBAREA ¢

Leases of over 50 years H+4EPLE = 143,000

Outside Hong Kong, held on: BEUS > D TEMMAFAR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years APEE AR 995,219 748,561
995,219 891,561

BREYER_FFNFE=H=1+—H
FH 7 o7 S 3E A AR A E RS R AT
PR 23 W) 4% 4y ) i B o HE AT FRLA o

The investment property was revalued at 31 March 2008 on an open
market value basis by an independent, professionally qualified valuer,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.

AR Z B G RITF :

The details of the Group’s investment properties are set out as follows:

Property name Location Type Lease term

LIEEA 3 ik gl ik

Medium lease

IR

Changshou Properties
Rk

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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17.LAND USE RIGHTS 17. - 3 £ ) A
The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represents prepaid A 45 T 7 O RE 2 BE AR (45 AT
operating lease payments and their net book values, are analyzed as 7 FH 5 2R 0E T EL AR R T
follows:
Group
A K
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Cost: B
At 1 April/1 January WWA—H, —H—H = =
Additions HE 35,610 -
Exchange difference [ S8 25 8H 1,972 =
At 31 March B=EA=+—H 37,582 -
Accumulated amortization: 2l -
At 1 April/1 January WMUA—H, —H—H = -
Charge for the year/period CANPE 1N b 192 -
Exchange difference iEE b0, 25 %A 11 -
At 31 March NR=H=+—H 203 —
Net book value IR
At 31 March B=EA=Z+—H 37,379 -
The Group’s interests in land use rights at their net book value are A A [ B RE 2 RE 2R (R E
analyzed as follows: A S # ) S E
2008 2007
ZEFNE “EEFLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T#T
Outside Hong Kong, held on: B - AT R EHmFFH -
Leases of less than 10 years THED TFZHE 362 =
Leases of between 10 to 50 years THEERH4EZHHEE 37,017 =
37,379 -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. it J& 2> W) B g

Company
YN

2008 2007

ZER)N\AE ZRBLE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Non-current assets: JER B E R

Unlisted shares at cost Je BT ey o SRBAE = 10,000
Current assets: B E

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS BF) g 2 ) ik JE 546,460 286,281
Current liabilities: WA

Amounts due to subsidiaries A B J85 2 Rl 3k 0B 214,938 -

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand, except an amount due to a
subsidiary of approximately HK$214.9 million, which is unsecured,
interest-bearing at LIBOR plus 3.15% and repayable within one year.
The carrying values of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries
approximate their fair value. Included in the amounts due from
subsidiaries, HK$290.1 million (2007: HK$267.5 million) is
denominated in HK dollars, while HK$256.4 million is denominated
in US dollars (2007: HK$18.8 million). The amounts due to

subsidiaries are all denominated in US dollars.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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JRE W JE AF BB 2 W] Z K TE TG JE K
o~ o8 B B R AR WA —
Wi JB8 A W] Z K JH £9214,900,000%5 JC B
Ab > 5% K T TG JEHRAH 0 5 AR BOER AT
SEF B 3. 15 w5 K E R — 4R A
R o ME WL A B JE 2 Rk T 2 R
{H BRLAE 55 A P (B AH 2 o 5 A RE W Bt
2w 2K JEH N Z.290,100,000% 76 (&
F L4 £ 267,500,000 J6) DLW oG 5l
> 256,400,000 76 (=R F L4 :
18,800,000 &) A 3 e 5t fE o M A K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2008.

Principal subsidiaries are those subsidiaries that are active and have

commenced operations.

18. P J& 2> W] BE g (%)

T #IR %

BAEZA=+—H

B A E A B o BB A A S
55 R OB &G T e 4 ]

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment Principal activities issued share
and kind of and place of capital/registered
Name legal entity operations  capital and debt securities Interest held
b bBL /L CRITRA /A
A S ek AR B E YL £ Y T i bl
2008 2007
e < JI% 2 2
Arrow Star Investment Hong Kong Property investment 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
Limited * in Hong Kong HKS$1
BEREHRA i EEENFEEE IR 2 198702
I
Daily Right Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
HIEARA T ERBEE R R 1570
Z By
Grand Boom Investments Samoa Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong US$1
KRR EH AR T e BB EER BT 2 1570
BB
Great Partner International Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited® in Hong Kong HKS$1
W B A A B BB G VBT 1387
By
Great Partner Investment PRC, limited Management Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited * liability company and consulting HK$8,000,000
in PRC
WaEsEEE () > TErp g B AN
CLY! ARREAT Rt e 5 8,000,000%7C
Moral High Limited Samoa Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
BRARAR T TR 100 It i 4 1 5670
IRy
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18. P J& 2> W] BE i (%)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment Principal activities issued share
and kind of and place of capital/registered
Name legal entity operations  capital and debt securities Interest held
b bBAL/ B CRITRA /G A
#iR YO R i e AR EL 3 Y E Y T i bl
2008 2007
ZEENE CERRLHE
Peak Moral High PRC, limited Property investment Registered capital of 100% 100%
Commercial Development liability company in PRC US$25,000,000
(Shanghai) Limited &
WA R R B T TEr B A 7 AN
(L) HRAT ARFIEAT 25,000,000 7
Rich Field International Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong US$1
W A R T e ERBREER 2T A 15670
Z BTy
Success Key Holdings British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share of *100% -
Limited Islands in Hong Kong US$1
IR IR AT WA ] O B AT B FERBRE TR U 2 1567
Z BB
“U” Inns & Hotels British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of *100% -
Holdings Limited in Hong Kong US$1
(formerly known as
United Base Group Limited)
R B 2 R AT WA e B AT ERBREER VBT 2156762
(R A AR 1 e
“U” Inns & Hotels Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Investment Limited” in Hong Kong HKS$1
bt 2 B AT AR i FERBREER IR 2 19870 2
R
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
Management Co., liability company in PRC 1US$2,200,000
Led Linzhi Tibet"
L S ZgEe: 3 O TS B 4 B Ak A
HHARA ARFAEAH 2,200,000%7¢

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18. B J& 2> W] BE g (%)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment Principal activities issued share
and kind of and place of capital/registered
Name legal entity operations  capital and debt securities Interest held
b bBL /L CEIRA /G E A
#ii YO I i e AR FERH RE RS v T A bl
2008 2007
ZEENE CEFRLHE
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Bu Er Jin) Management liability company in PRC US$1,000,000
Co., Ltd.®
ik B e R 1 A 2 HH S B 4 7 Ak A
(4 i ) R ARFIEAT 1,000,003 72
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Management Registered capital of 100% -
(Chengdu) Investment liability company and consulting US§$150,000
Management Limited* in PRC
i B R O (%) i A b B a1 ¥ 150,003 76
R RAT AREEAT
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Jin Chang) liability company in PRC US$1,000,000
Management Co., Led.* (Subsequently increased
10 US$1,147,980)
rHER(&E) I EREEERYE  REMEAK1,000,000% 70
R A WA ARREAF (BRI £ 1,147,980% TC)
“U” Inns & Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Jing Gang Shan Shi) Limited liability company in PRC HK$29,000,000
i By B (5 1L i) i EREEERE kg AK29,000,0008 70
ARAT AREEAT
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% =
(Long Nan) Management liability company in PRC RMB18,500,000
Co., Ltd®
T % b (RE ) 8% P A o 3 O Ak Mg A
BHARA ARFHEA A BM18,500,00078
U Inns & Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Si Chuan) Limited” liability company in PRC US$10,500,000
i 8 % AR I i T B e % AN N
(141D 7 R AREALA 10,500,000% 7%
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. Fff /& 2 w) B 22 (48)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment Principal activities issued share
and kind of and place of capital/registered
Name legal entity operations  capital and debt securities Interest held
akbBAL,/ B CRATRA /g A
#itk YO I i AR B YL £ Y T i s
2008 2007
e < JI% = 2
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Tong Hua) Management liability company in PRC US$2,670,000
Co., Ltd.
fRi% R (81L) g - TS B 4 7 Ak g A
W EAARAE ARFEA 2,670,000 7
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Tu Lu Fan) Management liability company in PRC US$1,500,000
Co., Ld.®
i B R O TS B 4 kA
(8 7 0 ) AREALA 1,500,000 7%
ARAT
“U” Inns (Wafangdian) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% =
Hotel Management liability company in PRC HK$28,000,000
Co. Ld®
TR i %8 (BB 6 ) 00 R A B O [AURZE
HHARAT ARFEAH 28,000,000%7%
“U” Inns & Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(WeiFang) Limited * liability company in PRC US$4,550,000
TR % B () i 7 v e Ak A
CLY! ARRAT 4,550,000%7%
“U” Inns & Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Wei Hai) Limited liability company in PRC US$1,670,000
TR B % R (B P TR i A
ARAF ARFEAT 1,670,000% 7t
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -

(Wu Han) Management liability company in PRC US$1,400,000
Co., Led.*

T B % 8 () 3 HE e v B i 4 ik it A
HHARAT G- GRA 1,400,000 ¢

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18. P J& 2> W] BE g (%)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment Principal activities issued share
and kind of and place of capital/registered
Name legal entity operations  capital and debt securities Interest held
L B CBIRA /A
4 H B T R AR FEEH R AL RHs i A wbtG ERTL 2
2008 2007
“ERNE CRREE
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% =
(Xi An) Management liability company in PRC US$10,100,000
Co., Ltd.A
TR B %8 (754 ) 7 HE Te v I 4 Ak g A
BHARAT HRFEEAH 10,100,000 7%
“U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% -
(Xiang Fan) Management liability company in PRC US$2,470,000
Co., Ltd.*
TR %48 (JE8%) )5 MR A H R A Ak A
HHARAT AREEAT 2,470,000%7¢
“U” Inns (Yingkou) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 100% =
Hotel Management liability company in PRC HK$39,500,000
Co. Led®
TR B %88 (8 1) ¥ HE Te v I # Ak g A
HHARAR HRFEEAT 39,500,000%7C
VXL Corporate Advisory PRC, limited Management Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited” liability company and consulting US§$140,000
in PRC
Liithe S g T T B AR Ak A
(L) A E AREEAT S 140,000 7
VXL Management Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
Services Limited® in Hong Kong HKS$1
R P il TER At VR % 19T
HRAR R Ry

A

of their Chinese names.

#

Shares held directly by the Company.

Subsidiaries audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation

R AR A B B o

B RN S o M B

HAp e -

f B A v R G R K 4B T L S

HH o
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Wi 2 2% vi] BE £
Group
p: e L]
2008 2007
“EEN\E “RFLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T#T
Share of net liabilities of associates JRE Ay Tk 75 > ) LM R AR (675) (1,024)
Amounts due from associates (Note a) JE L3 72 O ) sk JE (B REa) 900 36,033
225 35,009
The movement of the interests in associates is as follows: BAFRER ZEBWE ¢
Group
7 4R
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%&
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#T
At 1 April/l January WA —H,/ —H—H 35,009 -
Net advances/(repayments from) to XN N I A R #E
associates during the year/period (T 8% 2 V] HOR ) Z R JE 11 (2,189)
Transfer from interests in subsidiaries I B g 2 ] RE 2% g - 37,551
Share of profits/(losses) before taxation JE A B i s A (s 48) 1,216 (476)
Dividend income received from associates T W3 2 2 &) it B UL A = (22)
Share of deficit of an associate BT 4 A A A SR 2
reclassified as other payables JEAK — [ i 2 A W) 2 i Al - (586)
Share of exchange reserve movement RN REAG RE G
during the year/period W) 793 731
Disposal g (36,804) -
At 31 March NW=H=-F—"H 225 35,009

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note a: The Group has confirmed that the amounts due from associates are
regarded as equity in nature. Accordingly, the amounts are classified as
equity instruments, which are recognized and carried at the amount of

funding received and not subsequently remeasured.

The Group’s share of the results of its associates, all of which are

unlisted, and their aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows:

Ao U 5 A W k(A

19. Wi & o> 6 B g (%)
Pk = 75 I e 2 COBH 28 20 0 3 B
WM P - R > AR
2 T 5 DA TR
W > 7 B8 1 T B o

A4 1A S B A T (3R Bl 2 3k
MEHBEEREENT

2008 2007

ZER)N\E —FFLH

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt T

Assets V293 231 35,232
Liabilities §=Lr 906 36,256
(675) (1,024)

Revenues W25 5 981
Loss for the year/period jﬁf*lg//ﬁﬂ Gl gist (14) (476)

Details of the associates as at 31 March 2008 are as follows:

REZFNEA=ZA=Z+T—HEAF
RS

Place of Particulars of

incorporation/ Principal issued share Interest indirectly held

Name establishment activities capital by the Company

EA GRS WA WAL T CRITRARRE Ao FMESRE 2R

2008 2007

“EFN\E CFRFLE

Cruise City Holdings British Virgin Investment holding 100 ordinary 30% 30%
Limited Islands shares of US$1 each
£y 4'eids e cEidle 10085t 5 JBE v 4 %
156702 35 188 1 My

Cruise City (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Cruise terminal 1 ordinary share of 30% 30%
Limited development HK$1
B () A IRA T A 0 e 386 i 5 B 1Bt T i 7% 1 9 T

Siahldisy Annual Report 43
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET  20. ] {it } £ [} ¥ & &
Group and Company
7 45 R AR 8 ]
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007% 1/1/2006 2
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T#T
At 1 April/l January WMUHA—H —H—H 556 476
Changes in fair value taken to A2 A 1A

reserve (Note 29) s (B 5E29) 104 80
At 31 March W=H=1+—H 660 556

Available-for-sale financial asset represents unlisted club debenture of a
golf club, which is denominated in HK dollars. There was no

impairment of available-for-sale financial assets for the year/period.

None of the financial asset is either past due or impaired.

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A AR AR IRETZ
JE bl g A S AW TEHE - K
GBI PS> Bt S B B B E

HE 906 S0 7 ¢ L0 R A o

21. ¥ A PEHZ B HE S S IR 2
W 5 ¥

Group and Company

ACGE ) B A 2 )
2008 2007
“RRAE CRFLHE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7T T
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong FrfE H B Z A s bl JBehE
held for trading, at market value I o HEAE 21,753 16,505

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within
‘ . e Bfmr? . . foct] B
operating activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the

consolidated cash flow statement.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are recorded in ‘turnover’, in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

Ao U 5 A W k(A

21. ¥ AP BB IE RN IRZ

5 E (4

e (L0 M 4R 2 R O 7 2 A
(R B N M e [ 2
WO

Fit A7 T A 8 27 2 7 {E AR 9 0 S5 R 4
BT B B AR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. 5 5 B H Al JiE Wk I
Company
Y /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE “EFLE ZEENE ZEFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T Tt T
Trade receivables (Note) B 5 ME W HR R (B RE) 384 1,245 - =
Other receivables At JE Wtk T 2,665 2,069 28 52
Deposits for acquisition of gAY

hotel properties Z R4 62,197 - - -
Prepayments and deposits FEAT AR B ¥ 9,810 3,192 3,184 1,413
75,056 6,506 3,212 1,465

Note: The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

Fib sk = B2 50 B WOHR Ak Z SR B X AT AN R

Group
AAE
2008 2007
“EEAE CERLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
SR 0
Within 1 month —fEH AR 384 955
Between 1 and 3 months —Z=M#H = 290
384 1,245
Annual Report 4E3}
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Trade receivables represent rental income receivable. Rental income is
billed in advance on a monthly basis. All billings are due on

presentation.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their

fair value.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not
considered impaired. As of 31 March 2008, trade receivables of
HK$384,000 (2007: HK$1,245,000) were aged within three months,
past due but not impaired. These related to the rental income from the
Group’s assets held for sale, which were secured by deposits equivalent

to one month’s rental charge.

As at 31 March 2008, none of the trade receivables were impaired. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are

denominated in HK dollars.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain

impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
L 5 A R 4 )
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22. ¥ 5 B B fth W W0k 9 (48

S 5 B W e K 9 B SO RHL 2 e A o L 4
W\ Z W B35 H P2 88 o BT A R B
PR B4 o

1 55 10 Al HE WS T 2 W T 0 50 %
2 A -

W = A DL 2 ® 5 HE R K R
WAWHE - R _FRNE=ZHA=Z1—
H > B 5 B IR 5K384,000% 7 (= F
LA 0 1,245,0008 00 ) Z B B A5 = 1@
AW > B E R A o 3% 55 sk IE B
REAREEFEREZEEZHASK
NGB o LA A —E A R A 2 %
SRR -

RERFNE=ZA=Z+—H BEY
Sy ME IR okt B - AR Z H 5
e FL At B WA S 2 e i DA W T L o

5 o L Al B WAk S < B At S80S
15 O

AR R H O R 52 2 a5 KA B R A
e R AR K A R 2 A e AR
] M S8 A T A A 9 R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. SRAT &b xS B &
Group Company
AAE A2 H]
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZERN\E ZRRLE ZER)N\4E SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T Tt T
Cash at banks and in hand WA ERR S 29,526 17,940 1,318 449
Short-term deposits TSR AT
with banks 1Fak - 3,030 — —
29,526 20,970 1,318 449
The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRATEE R M B & Z R AL )3 DL T 5 &
in the following currencies: Wb
Group Company
AAE YN/
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZERN\E ZRRLE ZER)N\4E ZRRLA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T WL T T
Hong Kong dollars Wt 12,424 12,917 1,103 445
Renminbi ANR# 12,236 7,909 - -
United States dollars *T 4,789 140 215 4
Other currencies Hofth £ % 77 4 = =
29,526 20,970 1,318 449
Annual Report 4E3}
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24.NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24 HIEEZIEM BN E &

On 7 December 2007, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of one of its investment properties. The disposal
was completed on 12 June 2008, on which day the beneficial

ownership was passed to the purchaser.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property before
reclassification as non-current assets held for sale was determined
based on valuation carried out by a professionally qualified executive
of the Group, using direct comparison approach by making reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market; and
income approach by capitalizing the rental incomes derived from the

market rental of the property with due provision for any reversionary

PoFRELET A LH > RKEMET
S HH ok > DL R B YK -
ZMER ZFFNEANA T ZH R
% H SRR EH T

A 45 [ % S 3 OB 4 SR FR A B
Z I it B E Tz O oF EAR 9 A AR
My AR N BT Z R A
BEAE > FF AT 2 BN B T 5 2 W b
898 IR B LB AT s DL R
25 38 DL i 5 1 B AR AL R B A LA
& WA & AL > 322 % 75 58 AT T 1

income potential using a market related capitalization rate. A W] 36 s A R B WA B AT o
The assets that are classified as held for sale are as follows: SEAEREREZEENT ¢
Group
AAE
2008 2007
ZER)\4E RRLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Property, plant and equipment LE B Y T
(Note 15(a)) (B 5E15(a)) 82 -
Investment property (Note 16) Bk (Hakie) 160,918 -
Goodwill R 2 18,314 =
179,314 -

As at 31 March 2008, the Group has future minimum lease rentals
under non-cancellable operating leases of HK$941,000 (2007:
HKS$1,766,000) receivable within one year. These rentals are generated
from the investment property classified as non-current asset held for

sale.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ¥ 5 B B fth FE A5k sk
Group Company
7 4 YN/
2008 2007 2008 2007
“ERF)N\E “RELE “RE)NE “ERFLE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T THT T THT
Trade payables (Note b) B o A IRR (Fi kD) 163 234 = =
Property cost payable (Note c) FEAT D 3E A (FifsEc) 6,200 291,968 = =
Other payables and accruals - ib B 3k Y8 & HE 51 JE H 38,284 32,822 2,913 2,058
Deposits %4 32,200 84,857 = =
76,847 409,881 2,913 2,058
(a) The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables are (@) B 5 P H A BE A k0 2 BR R TS
denominated in the following currencies: DL 3R s 455 .
Group Company
AR H A ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EFNE “RRLE “EF)N\E “ERFLE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
TF#u T¥#L T T¥#L
Hong Kong dollars ViSTH 42,018 7,261 2,913 2,058
Renminbi PN 34,610 402,620 = =
Other currencies Hofty £ % 219 = - =
76,847 409,881 2,913 2,058
Annual Report 4E3}
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25. % 5 J H {th B £+ 2% 386 (#&)

(b) The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: (b) EAEANRKZIRBSHWT :
Group
A
2008 2007
“EEN\E —EFRL
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Within 1 month —MHR 132 184
Between 1 and 3 months — R =M H 31 50
163 234
(c) This represents the remaining balance of consideration payable (c) 38 %k W g — ¥ ) 4 3 HE AR
for acquiring one hotel property. The amount as at 31 March Bzt NR_FEELFE=H
2007 relates to the acquisition of Changshou Properties. =t —HZHFHEHEKERESHE
&35 47 B o
£
26. BORROWINGS 26. fi
Group Company
N L YN/ |
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZER)\AE “FFLF ZEER)\AE —EFERLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt 5 T T
Non-current JERP
Bank loans SRATEK 475,090 97,000 = =
Obligations under il L
finance leases A 270 86 = 86
475,360 97,086 = 86
Current 1]
Bank loans AT R 25,225 3,000 = -
Other loans HoAth Bk 271,474 = - —
Obligations under A B
finance leases G 191 345 86 345
Amount due to ultimate JRE A5} o 2% 2 B A ]
holding company ZAKIH 187,693 129,551 187,693 129,551
484,583 132,896 187,779 129,896
Total borrowings i K A 959,943 229,982 187,779 129,982

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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26.BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. fif 5k (#4)

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings were W-BZFNE=ZH=1+—H > R4EH
repayable as follows: Be Ay w] Z A6 R E AR I ¢

Group Company

ALEH Y./ |

Bank loans Other borrowings Other borrowings
AT Bk HAt i 3% At 5
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

SRENE CFELE CFRAE CFEUE CFRAE CRRLE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$°000 HK$°000
T Twr TR TwE Tln T

Within 1 year — current ~ —4EPLF

portion — BPEAES Ay 25,225 3,000 459,358 129,896 187,779 129,896
Between 1 and 2 years —AEEWEN 51,760 4,000 105 86 = 86
Between 2 and 5 years WEREREN 290,660 93,000 165 - - -
Over 5 years TP, | 132,670 - - - - -
Non-current portion I BP IR 4 475,090 97,000 270 86 - 86

500,315 100,000 459,628 129,982 187,779 129,982

The bank loans are secured over the Group’s investment properties AT BT A 2z # s 3% (M
(Notes 16 and 24) with net book value of HK$1,156,137,000 as at 31 BE16/%24) TRALHEI > FOBR H FHE R —
March 2008 (2007: HK$143,000,000). One of the bank loans and the EENE=H=+—H%1,156,137,000
other loans with total outstanding loan balances of HK$311,912,000 Wt (ZFE LA :143,000,0004
(2007: HK$100,000,000) are guaranteed by VXL Capital Limited. JG) o MM ARE R AL AR A A311,912,00048
The Group has undrawn banking facilities of HK$18 million as at 31 7t (Z 2 E L4 : 100,000,000858) Z
March 2008 (2007: Nil). — TE SR AT B Ak B At B K TG H 4

MARAFRER R2BENE=H
=+—H > REF R PITHLE
#518,000,000% 6 (ZFE L4+ ) -

The obligations under finance leases are effectively secured as the HREEAEN THESEEGEE B
rights to the leased asset revert to the lessors in the event of default. A > R EHERIECHENE DR
%ﬁ o
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26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

26. fi 5k (#1)
P A 2 BRI R T

2008 2007
CERE)\4E —FFLE
HK$ RMB US$ HKS$ US$
# AR eI WIT S
Bank loans AT R 4.4% 7.8% - 5.2% —
Other loans Fofth B3k = 12.0% 22.3% — —
Obligations under &
finance leases TR 5.2% — 5.6% - - 5.6% =
Amount due to A} 52 1 8 ]
holding company Z K 4.8% - 5.3% 6.2% -

The Group’s bank loans, other loan and amount due to ultimate
holding company are subject to interest-rate changes every three
months, except one of the other loans with outstanding amount of
HK$56,563,000 (2007: Nil) which has a fixed interest rate of 12% per

annum.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

A5 M 2 BRAT B - 3L fth B Rk B E A
T MR B ] Z K A = H 2R R
538 T8 50 R o A Al Bk — I R A
K %456,563,0008 78 (~FF L4
JE ) Z K JE AR AR A R AR 12 FE B B
b o

ik sk = e i i B <5 2 o8 PR AR A

fif Ak 2 M Th B #% DA T £ W RHE |

Group Company
AL M A

2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEEN\E ZEFLEF “EFNE ZEFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T T#T T
Hong Kong dollars il 226,165 229,982 128,790 129,982
United States dollars eI 273,900 - 58,989 =
Renminbi PN 459,878 = = =
959,943 229,982 187,779 129,982

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILIITES 27. B S B IH £
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally ik 5 A7 RE AR 0 WK B - i AR 4 A JE B2 ]
enforceable right to offset and when such accounts relate to the same — B W B AR RH BE > B RIS R Gt B I &
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows: A E TS - AW T
Group
AAE
2008 2007
ZER)N\4E ZRRLAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Deferred tax assets % Tk R T A 9,671 1,421
Deferred tax liabilities A RLIE B & (97,262) (57,128)
(87,591) (55,707)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the ENMR S FEEEEAERETER
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year/period ZIBRERIEE B (A ) Buhy B 3 5
are as follows: R
Revaluation of
investment properties Tax losses Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
T¥0 F¥HT T
At 1 January 2006 N EENE—H—H (18,922) 396 (18,526)
Acquisition of business W i 26 75 (47,331) - (47,331)
Credited to consolidated income st AR AR R
statement (Note 10) (FftsE10) 10,182 1,025 11,207
Exchange difference [ bd 2540 (1,057) — (1,057)
At 31 March 2007 W _ZELE=A=1+—H (57,128) 1,421 (55,707)
(Charged)/credited to consolidated (1B H) 5t A& &
income statement (Note 10) 257 (B ak10) (34,695) 7,854 (26,841)
Exchange difference [ 5, 25 4 (5,439) 396 (5,043)
At 31 March 2008 N _RR)NE=ZH=1—H (97,262) 9,671 (87,591)
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILIITES (Continued)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows:

27. 3 3 B JH AR (4])

R Z IR E B (D WF

2008 2007

ZER)\4E ZRRLA

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Unutilized tax losses KB 2 BiE g E 28,587 15,528
Accelerated depreciation allowance in 2 Py 2 3 A 114 29)
28,701 15,499

At 31 March 2008, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and the
Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$153,753,000
and HK$69,214,000 (2007: HK$84,457,000 and HK$53,682,000)
respectively, which can be carried forward against future taxable
income, have not been recognized due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax losses, HK$131,347,000
(2007: HK$74,454,000) has no expiry date and HK$22,406,000
(2007: HK$10,003,000) expire within five years under the current tax
legislation of the respective jurisdictions. The Company’s unutilized

tax losses have no expiry date under the current tax legislation.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
140 s 4 ol A7 R 4 )

RZFRBNE=ZA=Z+—H K%
M K AR 2% B HEA R AN LR G B4R
JRE R M A 2 R B B TE i 4R 4
#) £%153,753,000%5 76 569,214,000
I (ZFF LE : 84,457,000% 6 K
53,682,000% J6) > fH B H 1% #i £ 2 I
Z SR TR o 1 AR 2 3 i DL R R
M98 4% ) W E B BLAT B iR > A
A 45 8 6 JE i 18 P 0 131,347,000% JG
ZERR LA ¢ 74,454,000% 70 ) oF M JE
W H I > 22,406,000% 70 (—F 2 L4 ¢
10,003,000% 75) B 74 T4 P9 21 1 o i)
R BUAT B R ] » AR A B Z R B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
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28.SHARE CAPITAL 28. [ A
2008 2007
ZER)N\E ZRRLAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt R
Authorized: B
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 4,000,000,000 % % 18 i > % B i 1E0.013 78
(2007: 200,000,000 ordinary shares of (ZZZ-L4E ¢ 200,000,000 3 78 % >
HKS$0.20 each) 15 B I {0,203 7C) 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRAE
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1,529,600,200/5% % 18 % » & B2 450.0138 70
(2007: 76,400,000 ordinary shares of (ZFZ L4 1 76,400,000 1 18 % »
HK$0.20 each) B IR 0. 209 70) 15,296 15,280
2008 2007
2 Y ZRRLAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 April/l January AMPA—H  —H—H 15,280 14,400
Issue of shares on placement i B 35 47 I Ay - 880
Exercise of share options F7 155 1 B E 16 =
At 31 March N=H=1+—H 15,296 15,280

Share subdivision

On 7 August 2007, every ordinary share of HK$0.20 each of the
Company was subdivided into twenty ordinary shares of HK$0.01
cach. The ordinary resolution approving the share subdivision was
passed by sharcholders of the Company at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 6 August 2007.

Ji oy % 4l

WoFERLHENHLH » KA R
T {60.20% 70 2 & 8 I ©F Al 4 — 1
JBE A JE VT 0019 I8 Z 3% 8 JBE o it ik
JBe 433 7 A 2 W 4 Ve R 5 H A 2 W] R
R E LA N H N HBRATZ B
B R L o
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28.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. A (4)

Share option scheme

During the year, 42,000,000 share options were granted under the
Scheme, with an exercise price of HK$0.77 per share. The related
weighted average closing price immediately before the date on which

the share options were granted was HK$0.77 per share.

The share options to subscribe for Shares are exercisable as to:

(i) For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less
than two years immediately before date of grant:

(@) up to 20% immediately after date of grant;

(b) up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;

(c) wup to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

(d) up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

(ii) For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than
two years immediately before date of grant:
(a) up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;
(b) up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and
(¢) up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

The fair value of share options granted during the year estimated using
the Black-Scholes valuation model is HK$0.2658 to HK$0.2941 per
share, which was based on valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer, Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited. The calculation
takes into account a share price of HK$0.77 per share, exercise price
of HK$0.77 per share, a risk-free interest rate of 4.02% to 4.15%, a
volatility of 42.34% to 50.62% with expected life for 2.5 to 4.0 years

and no expected dividend.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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ik JE HE T )

AR BE > 42,000,000 15 B HE AR 95 5
SR > fT RS0 77H 0 o B
i T BE A 2 HH B AT =2 A B BE S
W T 8 4 4 20778 00 o

Sl Je B VT R T B IR ) T A 8 DA R I
e

(i) #LEPEEZ h H AT IS A AR AR

MEZERFHE TS :
@ REBERMBEHR®RESE
20% 3

(b) ZEBEFZH H BT 2 H %
2 HE46.7%

(o) ZEBHEFZH H W24 H %
B2 #73.3% 5 &

(d) ZBE#zH H W36 H %
2% #100% 5

i) MEHERHHBHHEENBHZ
HRERELNS :
(a) ZEBERH H B E 218 A %
2% #33.3% 3
(b) ZEBE#Z W H W E 2410 A 1%
B2 #E66.7% 5 &
() ZEBE# W H W F36ME A %
B 2% 3#100% °

A B2 2 B RE B S S A A
W R R A R AT Z AN 0 3R
M 3 8 — G W 307 A 18 A =M AT A 5T
O FAE 43 i %50.2658 8 I6 $£0.2941 %
JC ° wFSEEN A BAE & 0. 77 0 ~ 474
1B 5 B 0. 779 70 ~ M I B A 24,0290 %
4.15% ~ W M42.34%%50.62% M TH 5l 4F
Bl2.5F4.04F » I MEHF BB o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
During the year, 1,600,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007:

Nil) new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Scheme at an exercise price of
HKS$0.77 per ordinary share. The related weighted average share price
at the time of exercise was HK$0.80 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2007: Nil) per ordinary share. These Shares rank pari passu with the

existing Shares of the Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

A U 85 A W k(A

28. A (%)

AR Y o FR 4R S B RE T ) AT A 1

8 8 0.77% 70 4T B i it HE - Mg
171,600,000 (R EZ _-FF LHE=H
EF—HIik AN : 58) FREH.01
Wh T Z 7 A B o A AT B R A B =2
HE 7 5 B A7 4 B IR A8 80,809 JT (R
EORZ2EE=ZA=Z+—HIL+IM
H o2 ) o B% 5By SR B BLA B
A AL o

W AR AT O D B AR S B A0 A5 A R o e

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: SE¥ AT Z B R -
1/4/2007 to 31/3/2008 1/1/2006 to 31/3/2007
1/4/2007%31/3/2008 1/1/2006%31/3/2007
Average exercise Average exercise
price in HK$ Options  price in HK$ Options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)
(S ] (3 S
A0 1 Ji J FT A S e
(#T) (F£r) (#78) (L)
At 1 April/1 January WHA—H/ "—HA—H = = = =
Granted 2 H 0.77 42,000 = =
Cancelled/lapsed GRS 0.77 (6,000) - -
Exercised AN d 0.77 (1,600) = —
At 31 March R=H=+—H 0.77 34,400 = =

Out of the 34,400,000 outstanding options (2007: Nil), 3,360,000

were exercisable.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year will expire on 22

August 2012 with an exercise price of HK$0.77 per share.

34,400,000 % B (2R L4
fiE) i > 3,360,0004) 2 A 4748 o

A 24 AT 22 B Y % — =
A =+ B > 7 80,77
Wt -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(%)

29. RESERVES 29. fii i
(a) The Group (a) AEEHE
Employee
Available-for-sale share-based
Share financial  compensation  Exchange  Retained
premium assets reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
WEmE DR
Tt i MBEERG  EEWERS EREE  REEN ki
HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
T T T#x  T#x  THx  T#x
At 1 January 2006 REZZAE-]—H 116,612 220 = - 62280 179,112
Issue of shares on placement MEBTRM 33,797 - - - - 33,797
Changes in fair value of WPt
available-for-sale NEEZ
financial assets bl = 80 = - - 80
Translation exchange difference HEE A
- Group £ = = - 6,857 - 6,857
— Associates | = = - 731 - 731
Net profit for the period PR REA
attributable to shareholders A A - - = = 63,544 03,544
At 31 March 2007 REBFLEZAZ1—H 150,409 300 - 7,588 125824 284,121
Changes in fair value of W T
available-for-sale NEEZ
financial assets EH - 104 - - - 104
Translation exchange difference AMREHE %
~ Group _ £ = = = 44,046 = 44,046
Employee share option benefits 18 B I A 25 = = 4,230 = = 4,230
Issue of new shares on exercise TR e e e
of share options i B A8 ey 1,640 = (425) = = 1,215
Net profit for the year G WA
attributable to shareholders Al = = = - 7,564 7,564
At 31 March 2008 R-ZFNEZH=1—H 152,049 404 3,805 51,634 133,388 341,280

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. fifi f (%)
(b) The Company (b) AL
Employee Retained
share-based  Available-for-sale earnings/
compensation financial ~ (Accumulated
Share reserve assets reserve losses) Total
premium  WBEREMNZ WHEHE  REER
BehE  EEMWERE  MEEERE  CERER) ok
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2006 REZBAE—H 116,612 = 220 52,576 169,408
Issue of shares on placement LB TR A 33,797 - - - 33,797
Changes in fair value of T R A
available-for-sale financial ANFEZ
assets 28 - - 80 - 80
Loss for the period MmN e R - - - (31,725) (31,725)
At 31 March 2007 R_ZEZLE=ZH=1—H 150,409 - 300 20,851 171,560
Employee share option benefits 1 B e R 2 - 4,230 - - 4,230
Issue of new shares on PRI s A
exercise of share options TEATH N 1,640 (425) - - 1,215
Changes in fair value of T R A
available-for-sale financial WEZ
assets EH) - - 104 - 104
Loss for the year R - - - (23,700) (23,700)
At 31 March 2008 REZZNEZH=F—H 152,049 3,805 404 (2855 153,403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. 1B E it )8 A H]

As disclosed in Note 11, on 1 August 2007, the Group disposed of its
100% equity interest in VXLESL at a cash consideration of
HK$11,000,000. The amounts for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2007 represent the effect of disposal of 55% the Group’s interest in
MSIL together with the sharcholder’s loan advanced to MSIL for a
total consideration of HK$42,070,000 in October 2006.

WM EELI g R R LEEN
H—H > A5 W& R 5k 4 2
il Z100%)8E A BE 25 0 Bl 4 ARAE 4
11,000,000# G « B £ R F L4 =
A=Z+—HIik+HMA Z 5% EEH
B S AR R R G Z55%HE 3 Z 5
B HFAR REANETAAREME R
R R 2 ROR K o AR A
42,070,000% JC °

The effect of the disposals is summarized as follows: WEREEZ LR T
1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Total assets 40 10,474 133,440
Total liabilities oy =R (474) (134,930)
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed MEZEETFE (AEFH) 10,000 (1,490)
100%/55% interest disposed H A 2100%,55%HE %% 10,000 (820)
Exchange reserve realized BB 2 [ S kA = (657)
Sharcholder’s loan assigned HHEE > 0 R K = 42,832
Profit on disposal B 3 A 1,000 715
11,000 42,070
Satisfied by: DL 5 R AT
Promissory Note” R I g - 42,070
Cash B4 11,000 =
11,000 42,070
Net inflow/(outlfow) of cash and e EA 2 B4 KBS0
cash equivalents on disposal: WA () &
Proceeds received in cash B4 P OB =Z Bl A5k JE 11,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents in H B 7 B s W) 2 B4 I
subsidiary disposed B4 (8,852) (63,228)
2,148 (63,228)
# The promissory note was utilized to offset against the loan from the # R LSRR SR AR B e A R IR A

ultimate holding company.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. GUARANTEES

The Company provides a guarantee for the mortgage bank loan of an
investment property of a subsidiary and short-term other loan of a
subsidiary amounting to HK$97 million (2007: HK$100 million) and
HK$218 million (2007: HK$Nil) respectively.

32. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments — where the Group

is the lessee

At 31 March 2008, the Group had commitments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises, which

fall due as follows:

A U 5 A W k(A

31. %R
ARAFH—HHEARBREDEZ
AR AT B K — S A R 2
1 30 il £ 3k 43 ) 42 4 %£97,000,000 %5
JG (2 E L4 £ 100,000,0008 96) K
218,000,000 7C (= FF L4 : FWIL)
ZHER -

32. Ak ¥
() BEMEFRE - MALHE
RERMA

RoZFNE=ZA=+—H K
5 [ AR A T AR AL R 3R
U TFE XA 2 MY 32 &

W

2008 2007

SBRNE CRBUE

HK$’000 HK$000

Tt T#L

Not later than 1 year 7S 8 36— 4% 9,885 5,366
Later than 1 year and not later —4EPL_RHR i

than 5 years HAE 20,935 486

30,820 5,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 285 A W (D)

32. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Capital commitments

The Group has 30% effective interest in Cruise City Holdings
Limited (“CCHL”) and its subsidiary, Cruise City (Hong Kong)
Limited, which submitted an Expression of Interest to the
HKSAR Government for the New Cruise Terminal Development
in December 2005. Pursuant to a joint venture agreement dated
8 December 2005, the Company has committed to advancing
approximately HK$3,000,000 to CCHL of which HK$900,000
has been paid as at 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$900,000).

During the year, the Group has entered into various agreements
to acquire 28 hotel properties from China Post Group for a total
consideration of RMB472 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$523 million). The hotel properties are located in the Gansu,
Liaoning, Jilin, Shandong, Sichuan, Hubei, Zhejiang, Shaanxi,
Guangdong provinces, Chongqing municipality, Xinjiang Uygur
and Tibet autonomous regions of the PRC. As at 31 March 2008,
the Group has paid 199 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$221 million) to China Post Group.

Other than as mentioned above, as at 31 March 2008, the Group

has the following commitments in respect of renovation costs of

32. ¥ ()
(b) & A K i

7K 4 [ ¥ A Cruise City Holdings
Limited ([ CCHL 1) 309%=2 Ef ¥ ##
7 > 10 B JE A B 3 e (5 )
BRAFRCR RRHAE T H
Ii) 5 ¥ AR 1 A B I A R A — 1y
S T R S S UE H Z R R o
W R4 H)\H T
L2 — B R AR E Ok
wh [ CCHLE Y £13,000,000 %5 7C >
H 41900,000% 6 (ZFF L4 ¢
900,000 J6) Tt —FEF 4=
HETF—HXf-

i ST R N - VAR A
we o DA H B e 4 W 28
WG o % > BARE R AR
472,000,0007C (# % J2523,000,000
W on) o W E W AL R B
W BEE S AR R W
WAL ~ WiIL - PR - R A - E
JEE T~ 3T R Ak AT % VR E IR [
o R_-FF)NE=ZH=4—
H > Z< 48 B O i A [ 86 e 42 1B 52
f N B %199,000,00078 () 2 >
221,000,000% J2) ©

B Bl oh s RZFFANE=A
=+ —H > ALEMA TIAERER

Changshou Properties: Y Z TR A Z AR A
2008 2007
ZER)\4E ZRRLA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Authorized but not contracted for TR RET £ 22,508 =
Contracted but not recognized ERT#H R AR 62,046 5,798
84,554 5,798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year/period:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purchases of services

The Group has contracted with various related parties, which are
corporations controlled by a Director of the Company, to provide
management and administrative services to the Group. The
management and administrative fee paid and payable for the year
is HK$299,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007:
HK$342,000)

Rental charges

The Group has entered into a tenancy agreement with the
landlord, Smart Forward Services Limited, a corporation owned
by a Director of the Company, to lease a residential unit at a
monthly rent of HK$55,000 effective from 15 May 2006 for a
period of 2 years. A rental deposit of HK$110,000 has been
placed with the landlord. The rental expense paid and payable for
the year is HK$660,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007:
HK$578,000). The lease has been renewed on 13 May 2008 for
further two years commencing on 15 May 2008 at a monthly

rent of HK$66,000.

Interest expenses

During the year, the Group has interest expenses paid and
payable to VXLCPL amounting to HK$11,225,000 for the loan
as disclosed in Note 26 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2007:
HK$3,572,000).

33. B R 5

AR SR OB O HE AT 2 38 5 iR A
mE

(a)

(b)

(o)

i B R 5

A 2 4B (h AR A
Ao EEERNZAE) LA
#9 > 1) AR 4 R 4L A B R AT A
PR - BN » A K A 45 B
AT B B £5299,0009 76 (B
ZEXFLE=ZH=+—H1k
+FAE A : 342,000 70) °

A 4 PR 52

A4 B 2% FSmart Forward
Services Limited (AN A H] — & &
HPEAH Z A w]) w5 oL — IH # 5
% 0 DL H #55,000% o6 1 B — A
AL M ZRRAEL
H A1 B FH 5 W AR o AR
B 1 2 & 32 fF110,000% J6 1 4
WA o N A KA RLE B
¥ %4660,0008 6 (R E_FF L
E=Z=H=+—HIE+HMA :
578,000 J0) - MlE N B F
JERHA+=Z=HEAWE > 5=
FRNELHTHLH MG AR
66,000% JC °

F B BA 32

AR TN 5 2 4 AR PR 26 PT R 2
Bk B A K A P VXLCPLZ F
BB 32 511,225,000 00 (8% = —
ZRLE=ZA=Z1—H 1L+
H :3,572,000¥%70) °
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Key management compensation

33. Bl Wi O &2 5 (%)

(d) FZEB)E <

1/4/2007 to 1/1/2006 to
31/3/2008 31/3/2007
1/4/2007 % 1/1/2006%
31/3/2008 31/3/20057
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Salaries and other short-term 7 4 Je At 5 1
employee benefits B TEH 10,285 12,960
Employee share option benefits 1 B Wi St RE A 225 2,214 =
Pension costs — defined IR IR 42 B AR — e A kT 3
contribution plan 53 100
12,552 13,060
34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 34. & E AKX H & FHE

On 4 June 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of 90% of its equity interests in Moral High, to
a third party, for an aggregate consideration of RMB625.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$700.6 million), subject to certain
adjustments as described in the Company’s announcement dated 13
June 2008. Moral High is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and an investment holding company holding 100% equity interests in
the registered capital of Peak Moral High. The principal asset of Peak
Moral High is Changshou Properties (Note 16).

35.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 150 were

approved by the Board on 18 July 2008.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
150 o 4 ol A7 R 8 )

WZFF)NFENANHE » A4 HEET
oL B OE Wk o A R E R Z290%
BAERTHE=T - RER AR
625,500,0007C (£ % #4700,600,000%
J6) o MRS TR (AN R —ZFE
JAESRNH TFEHBRZ MM R Frak) o
TRE AR A F Z 2 G W E A w2
T 05 SE I R Z A AR 9100908 A%
RE i 2 BE VB AT o IR EE R Z
T MR s 2 (Fisk16)
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“112 Apartments”

22—

“AGM(s)”
RIEVEEN -

“Articles of Association”

[ CALBRERR AR ]

“Associate(s)”

[t

“Board”
[EFg ]

“CG Code”
[ EsEgasraly |

>

“Changshou Properties’
RS2V E

“Company” or “VXL Capital”
A2 W] J g [ o 5 ik |

“Companies Ordinance”
<2 Al fEpl) ]

“Directors”

[# % |

“EGM”
[ JBe S 3 Ko

“Group”
[ A4

“HK$”
[#e ]

“HKICPA”
[ 8 7wt il A

“Hong Kong”
[ 5% ]

“Listing Rules”

[ AL

Glossary

=N

the property situated at 112 Chun Yeung Street, North Point, Hong Kong
Ao A e A B AT 11258 2 W 3

Annual General Meetings of the Company
LA SN

The Articles of Association of the Company
AR CALARZRR AN

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the
financial statements

HAg CEMTRLA B3 Ao 28 > B8 Ak P9 0 A7 St o Y 3 2 B B b

The board of Directors
HEE

Code of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

CEmBLALY B 8%+ PUprakes (A& 4836 8L D)

The North Block and South Block of the property development known as Changshou
Commercial Plaza situated in the Putuo District in Shanghai, the PRC

B v i P IR 4 IR 5 T S R 4 Al B S v R A S B PR I H

VXL Capital Limited
LR AT PR 2 ]

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time
to time

AW = SRR (A R BID) (REAR B EET)

Directors of the Company

AR HEFR

Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company

LA SV IPN

The Company and its subsidiaries

A ] B i I 28

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
WL > FMLERT

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Al A

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H g N BRI A 8 7 9 R ) AT TR

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from
time to time

I 32 T ) 3% v (7 9 B £ 32 2 P A PR ) 2 B TR ) (RERS R T)
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Glossary (Continued)

w5 (B])

“Model Code”
[ s ALY |

“Moral High”
K==

“Peak Moral High”
[z S5 1 v

“RQN Committee”
[RQNZ H & |

“pRC”
[ ]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
DN

“SFO”

€t 27 B 391 5 e 40 |

“Share(s)”
[ Bt |

“Scheme”

[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
R

“Stock Exchange”
[ T8 &2 Bt |

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
EXY

“VXLCPL”

[VXLCPL

“VXLFSL”
[ - Sl

“Warrants”

[ Ji o

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

152 s 4 il A7 R 28 )

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(v BRI B 5+ i CE i B8 AT A 38 S 47 8 25 22 5 W A < )

Moral High Limited
P A B A R

Peak Moral High Commercial Development (Shanghai) Limited
R SETE SRR () AR A H]

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee

W RELRVZET

The Peoples’ Republic of China
w2 N B IE A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N R v ik B

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as
amended from time to time

BWHHIE I E L+ — T GBI R B (FER & 3T)

Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
A 2 ) JBe A v A BT AEL0.0 198 TG Y 8 2 Ji

The share option scheme adopted by the Company at AGM held on 3 June 2005
AN TR ZRFBIAENH = H BT Z 0 AR L BR A 6 i B

Holder(s) of Share(s)
ELESEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
T a2 5 A R A

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
B G 2 B Y1 £ 4 ) Bif 2 — T R 3> 1 i 2

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and a controlling Shareholder of the Company

B ST B Ji B L B 5 44 A5 VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited 2 B & A8 A w]
Py 928 Je JBe R

VXL Financial Services Limited

LR A S A PR A T

listed warrants of the Company (Stock Code: 831)
A ) Z v R b R (B AR < 831)



Financial Summary
S 25 4k 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A AR [ 7 o 3 T B ) T 2 A A R A
last five financial periods. FEWE o

1/4/2003 to ~ 1/1/2004 to ~ 1/1/2005t0  1/1/2006 to  1/4/2007 to
31/12/2003  31/12/2004  31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008
1/4/2003% 1/1/2004% 1/1/2005% 1/1/2006%  1/4/2007 %
31/12/2003  31/12/2004  31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt ¥ T T T

Turnover B 7,274 3,739 11,819 33,939 23,976

Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI (&) 7,291 (7,396) 9,860 52,337 34,449

Taxation (charge)/credit BIE (G2 ) /s (207) 1,247 (5,793) 11,207 (26,885)
Profit/(loss) attributable to JB R REAG R (s )

shareholders 7,084 (6,149) 4,067 63,544 7,564

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group AEEPR _REEZF CRRNER R

as at 31 December 2003, 2004 and 2005, and 31 March 2007 and 2008. FHAFETZHAZ+T—HUERZZFFLEK
“EFENE=ZHA=Z+—HZEERAFER
BMEAE -

31/12/2003 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/3/2008

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T T Tt

Total assets AR 196,916 190,293 300,505 994,971 1,480,957
Total liabilities £ A% (1,542) (1,068) (106,993) (695,570)  (1,124,381)
Sharcholders funds JR IR 4 195,374 189,225 193,512 299,401 356,576
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Shareholders’ Information

JBe R R

ANNUAL GENRAL MEETING

The 2008 AGM will be held on Friday, 22 August 2008 at 2:30 p.m. at
Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong. Details of the 2008 AGM including shareholders’ right to demand a
poll are set out in the Notice of 2008 AGM sent to the Sharcholders

together with a proxy form along with this Annual Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address: Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Telephone: +852 3168 2588

Facsimile: +852 3168 2599

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information of
the Company are available online at the Company’s website, www.vxlcapital.

com.

FINANCIAL CALENDER 2008

Announcement of 2007-8 Annual Results 18 July 2008

2008 AGM 22 August 2008

Announcement of 2008-9 Interim Results December 2008

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

HK$1,300.2 million as at year end, based on closing price of HK$0.85 per
Share on 31 March 2008.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. XIAO Huanwei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.B.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.
Mr. David YU Hon To

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAOQO (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Mr. XIAO Huanwei

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. David YU Hon To (Chairman)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.»

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.».

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.0. (Chairman)

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

M:r. Alan Howard SMITH, .2

Mr. David YU Hon To

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAI Ka Fai

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)

o El B R ()

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Ms. YAU Yue Ka

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Credit Agricole (Suisse) S.A.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)
Warrants (Stock Code: 831)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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WL CAPITAL LIMITED
FHERBRLA

Suite 2707- 8, One Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

ERBPRELESE
REEHZ—H2707- 8F

www.vxlcapital.com
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